
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting, Tuesday, 16th April, 2019
   at 2.30 pm (Drawing Room)

Site Visits

2018/0817 – Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

Depart Town Hall Courtyard at 1.15p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 



the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 12th March, 2019.

5 - 28

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  29 - 50

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Book 1) 
 

51 - 190

(D) 9.  Unauthorised Advertisements within the Borough 
 

191 - 192

(D) 10.  Receipt of Local Plan Inspector's Report 
 

193 - 196

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30p.m.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chair)
C. Thomson (Vice-Chair)
Blezard
Derbyshire
Gawne
Husband
McEwan
Mcleavy
Murphy
Murray
Seward
Thurlow



For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday, 8th April 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 12th March, 2019
at 2.30 p.m. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors, C. Thomson (Vice-Chair), Blezard, Gawne, Husband, 
McEwan, R. McClure, Murray, Seward and Thurlow.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith 
(Principal Planning Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member 
Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

317 – Declarations of Interest

Councillors Gawne and McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to 
Cumbria County Council as they were Members of that Council.

318 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chair), 
McLeavy and Murphy.

Councillor R. McClure had attended as a substitute for Councillor McLeavy for this 
meeting only.

319 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5th February, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

320 – Enforcement Report – Housing Development Sherborne Avenue, Barrow-
in-Furness

The Development Services Manager (Planning & Enforcement) submitted a report 
relating to a matter that had been identified as a Level 1 Priority under the 
Enforcement Policy, whereby failure on the part of the Developer to comply with the 
approval of Planning Permission B07/2016/0902 had significant public safety 
implications.

B07/2016/0902 related to an application whereby permission had been granted for 
the erection of 69 houses, detached and semi-detached with garages, including 
access roads and associated site works.  The approval had been dated 17th October 
2017.

Condition 2 required the development to be carried out in accordance with the 
application dated 07/12/2016.  Crash barrier details reference 16301/17, (fence 
detail to railway boundary) EXEMPA profiled panel system colour green RAL 6005.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Condition 3 defined the relationship between the proposed estate access road and 
the operational railway and specified the distances between the edge of the 
carriageway, crash barrier, security fence and retaining wall as per the plans detailed 
at Section A-A and B-B reference 15074/02.3 Rev A.

Condition 16 related to the specification of the boundary fence to the railway line.  It 
required that a scheme of phasing and a method statement be submitted to the 
Planning Authority for approval in writing. 

Condition 17 related to the specification of the crash barrier and road layout. 
Similarly a scheme of phasing and a method statement had been required to be 
submitted to the Planning Authority for written approval. 

Crucially conditions 16 and 17 had to be discharged prior to the beneficial 
occupation of the dwellings.  It had been noted that houses were now being lived in 
on the development which had been identified by a member of staff dealing with an 
application for a domestic extension, and reported to the Borough Enforcement 
Officer.

Whilst conditions attached to the approval cited compliance with details already 
submitted, as part of the initial application, the Developer had been required to 
submit a scheme of phasing and a method statement for approval in writing.  These 
drawings showed a fairly standard “amco” type carriageway barrier and a close 
boarded fence on the railway side, supplemented with planting in between.  The 
Developer would then need to erect the barrier as per the approved drawings.  This 
had been required to have been completed prior to beneficial occupation of any of 
the houses.  The rationale underpinning these conditions had been to prevent 
unauthorised access on to Network Rail land and protect the railway lines 
themselves.  Some houses were now occupied, possibly including families with 
young children, and hence the risks and dangers were obvious.

Committee approval had been sought to pursue formal enforcement action if a timely 
and satisfactory outcome could not be negotiated.  There had been evidence to 
suggest that the Developer had, in the past, given insufficient attention to such 
matters on an earlier phase.  It had been reported that Council should, in this case, 
show that it was determined to demonstrate its commitment to correctly manage 
development, particularly when public safety was threatened.   

Various enforcement options would be open to the Authority should the Developer 
not fully comply with his assertion to prioritise the matter.  In this case it would be 
likely that a breach of condition notice could be served, together with an enforcement 
notice, in order to expedite compliance. 

It was noted that the Enforcement Officer had engaged with the Developer and their 
representatives to seek an urgent resolution to the issue.  Assurance had been 
provided that this matter would be given priority by the Developer, and Officers 
would continue to work at pace to influence voluntary compliance on the part of the 
Developer.  The Principal Planning Officer reported at the meeting that the 
Enforcement Officer had now obtained a timetable from the Developer to install a 
permanent fence on the site.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- To agree to authorise Officers to take any enforcement action deemed 
necessary in the event of a continued failure to comply.

321 – Quarterly Planning Performance Update

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) submitted a report 
demonstrating how the Authority had performed in determining planning applications 
during the previous two years.  It had been noted that the figures had steadily 
increased following procedural changes and the appointment of a temporary DM 
Officer.  I had also been noted that not all applications received counted towards the 
figures and it remained a management function to ensure that sufficient resources 
and appropriate procedures were in place to prioritise the workload.

The latest Performance Report demonstrating how the Authority had handled 
planning applications in its region had been included as an appendix to the report.

It had been noted that the planning performance assessment period was a rolling 
two year system that had a 12 month overlap.  Once an assessment period had 
come to an end, the new period started with the last 12 months of data from the 
previous one, then the next four quarters were added over time to complete a new 
two year assessment period.

The last assessment period which had been covered in the December report 
(reported to Planning Committee on 5th February) had run between October 2016 
and September 2018, the new period that would be covered in this quarter’s report 
would run from October 2017 to September 2019.  It had been noted that when the 
assessment period changed this often skewed the performance figures (in either 
direction), hence the Development Services Manager’s previous assertion that the 
focus should be on trends rather than snapshots.  

Oct18 - Sept18             Majors 62.9%           Others 71.9%
Oct18 - Sept19             Majors 57.9%           Others 78.1%

Whilst there had been some minor fluctuations, the Council were generally around 
the Government target for ‘Majors’ but well above the target for ‘Other’ applications.  
It was a little early to assess the impact of switching to Area teams, but the change in 
the Delegation Agreement had seen a marked increase in the number of applications 
going before the Panel; hence the performance rise in ‘Others’.

The Principal Planning Officer reported at the meeting that the performance figures 
as of today were 75% for ‘Majors’ and 87% for ‘Other’ applications.

RESOLVED:-  To note the information.

Town and Country Planning Acts

322 – Delegated Applications

The Assistant Director (Regeneration and Built Environment) submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2018/0779 Side extension to house a swimming pool with associated gymnasium 
at 14A Ireleth Court Road, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness.

2018/0620 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 
(Phasing plan for demolition activities and method statement) for 
planning permission 2017/0191 (Partial demolition of South 
Morecambe Terminal (SMT) removing approximately 80-90% or 
buildings at Barrow Onshore Terminals, Rampside Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0017 Advertisement consent to display 1 high level halo illuminated sign, 2 
internally illuminated fascia signs and 1 high level sign made up of 
non illuminated individual lettering at Emlyn Hughes House, Abbey 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0783 Change of use from a general industrial (B2) to mixed general 
industrial and tool and equipment/plant hire (sui generis) including the 
erection of steel portal framed workshop/storage building and location 
of a portaloo style toilet facility (amended description) on Land within 
BOC Ltd, Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0843 Proposed erection of two storey side extension and internal 
alterations at 13 Tweed Rise, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0845 Change o fuse from a dental lab (Use Class D1) to retail (Use Class 
A1) at ground floor with associated office and store at first floor, 
provision of new shopfront and erection of rear metal staircase to 
serve first floor at 66 Crellin Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0028 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 
(Landscaping) for planning permission 2016/0780 (Proposed upgrade 
to current Aerodrome facilities and infrastructure including aircraft 
hanger, vehicle garage etc.) at Walney airfield, Red Ley Lane, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2018/0858 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1990 
No. 12 Area 3 – Beech (T1) crown reduce by 3m, Sycamore (T2, T3 
and T4) crown reduce by 2m at North Lodge, Abbey Road, Dalton-in-
Furness.

2018/0844 Proposed single storey side elevation infill extension to create 
accessible toilet following the removal of the existing extension 
including external alterations to 2 no. adjacent windows and 1 no. new 
rear elevation door in new opening at Crown Hotel, North Scale, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0713 Erection of a purpose made agricultural building to store equipment at 
Tithe Barn Nurseries, Long Lane, Dalton-in-Furness.

2018/0833 Side and Rear single storey flat roof extension at 38 Highlands 
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0834 Two storey side pitched roof extension with abutting front porch, rear 
single storey pitched roof extension, flat roofed dormer to rear 
elevation and creation of additional off street parking with permeable 
paving at 84 Ocean Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0073 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 7 
(verification reports) for plots 1, 2, 3 and 4) of planning permission 
20`6/0126 (Residential Development of 13 Dwellings) at Hayeswater 
Drive, Dalton-in-Furness.

2018/0853 Front double pitched extension comprising ground floor dining room 
and first floor bedroom extensions.  The erection of a porch on the 
front elevation at 4 Chapel Field, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0024 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) to allow for the conversion of existing garage 
into a dining/utility room at 25 Penrith Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0860 Replacement front door and proposed new window in south facing 
elevation.  Installation of roller shutters over two door openings and 
new window at Roose Pioneers RLFC, Flass Lane, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2018/0856 Erection of mesh fencing to the car park (retrospective) at Former 
Remploy Ltd, Flass Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0812 Change of use from retail (Use Class A2) to a dental practice (Use 
Class D1) with associated cosmetic dental treatments at 234-236 
Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



2018/0835 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 5 
(Ecological Management Plan) and No. 6 (Habitat Management Plan 
and Maintenance Schedule) of planning permission 2015/0614 
(Proposed installation of a 4.17 MW solar farm and associated 
development) at Sowerby Lodge (Land north of) Bank Lane, Barrow-
in-Furness.

2018/0846 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1984 
No. 4 consisting of fell 1 x Sycamore and 1 Lime, crown 
raise/thin/reduction work to 1 x Beech, 1 x Maple, 1 x Sycamore, 3 x 
Horse Chestnut, 3x Lime, pollard 1 x Lime at Lynter Court, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2018/0849 Rear kitchen and garage extension. Conversion of rear first floor 
bedroom to bathroom at 5 Victoria Street, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0128 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 5 
(Proposed Planning Scheme) of planning permission 2018/0846 - 
Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1984 
No. 4 consisting of fell 1 x Sycamore and 1 Lime, crown 
raise/thin/reduction work to 1 x Beech, 1 x Maple, 1 x Sycamore, 3 x 
Horse Chestnut, 3x Lime, pollard 1 x Lime at Lynter Court, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2018/0821 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 4 
(Construction Method Statement) and No. 5 (Construction Traffic 
Management Plan for planning permission 2016/0707) (Erection of a 
new facility for the maintenance of shiplift transfer cars and a new 
Devonshire Dock Complex (DDC) storage building) at BAE Systems, 
Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0003 Single storey rear and side extension to form a home office space at 
47 Highlands Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0053 Single storey rear extension forming a sun room, single storey side 
extension forming garage and a wc including shower.  Erection of a 
front porch and off road parking to front forming extended driveway at 
2 Bermuda Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0051 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) for the introduction of two new windows and 
two exit doors on the rear elevation at Unit F and G Hollywood Park, 
Hindpool Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0067 Proposed side and part rear two storey extension forming a store, 
kitchen/utility extension on ground floor with two bedrooms over at 11 
Orontes Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



The following application had been partially approved:-

2019/0037 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 11 
(Construction Method Statement), No. 14 (Details of finish to solar 
panels), No. 17 (Details of control room), No. 18 (Details of access 
track) and No. 20 (Details of boundary fencing) for planning 
permission 2015/0614 (Proposed installation of a 4.17 MW solar farm 
and associated development) at Sowerby Lodge (Land north of) Bank 
Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) reported on the 
following planning applications:-

323 – 85 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr M. Bulloch, Global Propertunities Ltd in respect of the change of use from 
seven bedroom guest house (Use Class C1) to an eight bedroom House of Multiple 
Occupation (Use Class Sui Generis) (Re-submission of planning application 
2018/0307 to a revised scheme) at 85 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on 
plan number 2019/0006.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 04/01/2019 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

PO4, PO6 rev. A

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



324 –76 Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr M. A. Harrison, Architect in respect of the change of use from Estate 
Agents (Use Class A2) to a Cancer Therapy Centre (Use Class D1) at 76 Duke 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0060.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 30.01.2019 and the 
hereby approved document defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Floor plans, Elevations and Selections as Proposed Drawing Ref: 522-
001.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

325 – 76 Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr M. A. Harrison, Architect in respect of the replacement of existing fascia 
signage with a non illuminated fascia sign to front elevation at 76 Duke Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0061.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that advertisement consent be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 30.01.2019 and the 
hereby approved document defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Floor plans, Elevations and Selections as Proposed Drawing Ref: 522-
001.

Reason

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

During Building Works 

2. Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be 
removed, the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the 
public or impair visual amenity.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007.

Operational Conditions 

3. No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner 
of the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitlement to 
grant permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007.

4. No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to; (a) endanger 
persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or 
aerodrome (civil or military); (b) obscure, or hinder the ready 
interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to navigation by 
water or air, or (c) hinder the operation of any device used for the 
purpose of security or surveillance or for measuring the speed of any 
vehicle.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007.

5. Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of 
advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair 
the visual amenity of the site.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



6. Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of 
displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does 
not endanger the public.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007.

326 – Roose Road Garage, Roose Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr T. Ellor in respect of the material change of use of car sales pitch to car 
sales pitch and hand car wash and the erection of a 2 metre boundary fence at 
Roose Road Garage, Roose Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Principal Planning Officer drew the Committee’s attention to information which 
had been received from Cumbria County Council (Highways) and LLFA who had 
indicated that they no longer had any objections to the proposal but had 
recommended that additional conditions be included in any planning permission 
granted.  This additional information and revised conditions had been circulated in 
the Extra Information Booklet on 8th March, 2019.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 04.02.2019 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this permission.

Approved plans: Site Layout Plan DRG 1/19 dated 13.02.2019
Proposed Security Fence DRG 2/19 dated 13.02.2019.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Pre-commencement Conditions

3. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby approved by this consent, 
the 10 metres long and 2 metres high perspex screen as shown on the 
amended plans received on the 13.02.2019, shall be erected and 
thereafter retained in situ for the lifetime of the development, unless the 
Planning Authority gives prior express consent for any variation.

Reason

In order to protect the amenity of the local residents from noise and to 
protect pedestrians and highway users from spray potentially drifting 
onto Roose Road.

4. The site shall be laid out and permanently operated in order to ensure 
that all waste water arising from the washing of vehicles shall drain 
directly into the main sewers manhole as shown on the amended plans 
received on the 13.02.2019. All wastewater drainage shall be directed 
through silt traps and oil interceptors, the details of which including a 
maintenance schedule shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the use hereby 
permitted. The subsequent site drainage system shall be self-contained 
in order to ensure that no surface water shall be allowed to drain outside 
of the site and into the wider area.

Reason

The site is located above a Source Protection Zone in a principle aquifer. 
As such it is essential that any dirty water arising from the car wash 
facility is disposed to sewer as stated, and doesn’t infiltrate to the 
aquifer.

The Environmental Permitting (England & Wales) Regulations 2016 
make it an offence to cause or knowingly permit a groundwater activity 
unless authorised by an Environmental Permit. A groundwater activity 
includes any discharge that will result in the input of pollutants to 
groundwater."

During Building Works

No conditions of this type.

Before Occupation

No conditions of this type.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Operational Conditions

5. Within 28 days of the hereby approved car wash business commencing, 
the entrance gates to the site will be painted black to match the 
boundary fence, the gate posts either side will be finished in an orange 
colour in order to define the entrance and exists to the site. The entrance 
gates and boundary fence will be retained in a black finish there after for 
the life time of the development.

Reason

In order to protect the amenity of the local area.

6. The car wash as approved, shall only operate between the hours of 
09.00 and 19.00.

Reason

In order to protect the amenity of the local area from potential noise and 
other disturbance in the early morning and late evenings.

7. All lighting installed on site shall be directed and/or shielded so as to 
minimise light spillage outside of the application site, and shall not shine 
directly into the windows of adjacent neighbouring properties nor onto 
adjacent highways. Any additional lighting underneath the existing 
canopy shall not be installed without first obtaining the express written 
permission of the Planning Authority.

Reason

In ensure that light spillage from the site does not cause a harmful 
impact upon the amenity of the local residents and or highway users and 
therefore accord with Criteria d) of Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development.

8. All vehicles will only enter the site from Roose Road and will only exit the 
site onto Salthouse Road. This arrangement will be retained for the 
lifetime of the development.

Reason

In the interests of Highway safety.

327 – Land at Former 68 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr J. Cooksey in respect of an application for approval of reserved matters 
(external appearance and landscaping) following outline approval 2016/0509 
(Erection of a 4 storey apartment building (outline) with the reserved matters of 
means of access, siting, layout and scale not reserved for subsequent approval) on 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



land at Former 68 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 
2019/0626.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that reserved matters details of 
appearance and landscaping be granted subject to the Standard Duration Limit and 
the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 3.10.2018 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Proposed Ground and First Floor Plan Drawing No. ARC1718A 001B 
amended plan received on 19.2.2019
Proposed Second and Third Floor Plan Drawing No. ARC1718A 002B 
amended plan received on 19.2.2019
ARC78A PA 03A,04A,05A,06A,07A,08A,09A amended plans received 
on 13.2.2019

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority in the interests of the 
appearance of the development and the character of the conservation 
area.

Before Occupation

2. Prior to the beneficial occupation of the second and third floor 
apartments, the south east facing elevation windows must be 
permanently fitted with manufacturers obscure glazing of an obscurity 
rating of no less than level three from the Pilkington glass range (or an 
equivalent range and rating subject to prior agreement with the Planning 
Authority) and thereafter retained.

Reason

In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties 
from overlooking or perceived overlooking.

Operational Conditions

3. This form constitutes an approval of matters reserved under Condition 1 
of Planning Permission No.2016/0509 and does not by itself constitute a 
planning permission.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Reason

The application relates to matters reserved by Planning Permission 
2016/0509.

328 – Proposed Housing Site at Land adjacent to Greenhills Pond, Greystone 
Lane, Dalton-in-Furness

From Harry Barker Properties Ltd in respect of Outline planning permission with all 
matters reserved for a housing development of between 30 and 36 dwellings on 
Proposed Housing Site at land adjacent to Greenhills Pond, Greystone Lane, Dalton-
in-Furness as shown on plan number 2018/0070.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

RESOLVED:- (A) It was agreed that subject to the completion of an 
obligation/undertaking under Section 106 of the Act to secure the following:-

(i) The delivery of affordable housing of a minimum of 10% in accordance 
with the NPPF para 64 including annex 2;

(ii) a financial contribution of £108 460 [index linked] towards the costs of 
junction improvements where Newton Road meets Long Lane;

(iii) provision of access to remaining part of the allocated site REC43 
according to arrangements to be agreed/appropriate financial 
arrangements;

(iv) similar arrangements with respect to drainage;
(v) measures to provide and maintain SUDs including appropriate legal 

agreements;
(vi) measures to maintain public open space; then

(B) Outline planning permission to erect between 30 and 36 dwellings be granted 
subject to the Standard Outline and duration limits and conditions delegated to the 
Planning Manager but based on the conditions below:-

1. No development whatsoever shall take place until full details of the 
access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the development 
have been submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority and the 
development shall conform to such approved details.

Reason 

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

2. Application for Reserved Matters must be made not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with this permission and the 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



development must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the 
following dates: 

a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission
b) The expiration of two years from the final approval of the Reserved 

Matters or in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such Matter to be approved.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Highway conditions

3. No dwelling shall be erected beyond dpc height until all works to improve 
the carriageway and to provide a footway along Greystone Lane as 
shown within the Transport Statement Report including drawing no 
2018/1850/003 rev A, but excluding the junction improvement shown on 
drawing no 2019/1850/GLLL/002 have been completed in accordance 
with further details including longitudinal/cross sections which have first 
been submitted to and approved in writing with the Planning Authority.

Reason

To secure the objectives of the Transport Statement Report and the 
requirements of the County Council as highway authority, and to provide 
a safe environment for pedestrians and other users of the highway, to 
accord with saved policy E17.

4. No dwelling shall be erected beyond dpc height until street lighting has 
been provided along Greystone Lane for the extent of the footway 
referred to under condition 3 above and in accordance with further 
details of column positions and luminance levels which have first been 
submitted to and approved in writing with the Planning Authority.

Reason

To secure the requirements of the County Council as highway authority, 
and to provide a safe environment for pedestrians and other users of the 
highway, to accord with saved policy E17 of the Local Plan Review 1996 
to 2006.

5. No dwelling shall be erected beyond dpc height until the urban speed 
limit has been extended to the location shown within the Transport 
Statement Report ref MHC/1850/TS dated Jan 2019 including drawing 
no 2018/1850/003 rev A.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To secure the objectives of the Transport Statement Report, and the 
requirements of the County Council as Highway Authority and to provide 
a safe environment for pedestrians and other users of the highway, to 
accord with saved policy E17 of the Local Plan Review 1996 to 2006.

6. Development shall not be commenced until the access has been laid out 
to secure visibility splays of 2.4m x 60m as per the Transport Statement 
Report ref MHC/1850/TS dated Jan 2019 including drawing no 
2018/1850/003 rev A.

Reason

To secure the objectives of the Transport Statement Report, and the 
requirements of the County Council as Highway Authority, and to provide 
a safe environment for pedestrians and other users of the highway.

7. No dwellings shall be occupied (unless in accordance with a scheme of 
phasing previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority) until the estate road, including footways, has been constructed 
in all respects to base course level, and street lighting has been provided 
and brought into full operational use in accordance with details approved 
under condition no 8 below, including any scheme of phasing.

Reason

To ensure a suitable level of access provision to the development and to 
accord with saved policy E2 of the Local Plan Review 1996 to 2006

8. The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be designed, 
constructed, drained and lit to an adoptable standard and in this respect 
further details, including a full specification, setting out plan, lighting 
details, longitudinal and cross sections, and details of phasing shall have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority prior 
to the laying out of the approved estate roads. The development shall 
then proceed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To secure the requirements of the County Council as Highway Authority, 
and to provide a safe environment for pedestrians and other users and 
to ensure an adequate standard of highway construction, and to accord 
with saved policy E2 of the Local Plan Review 1996 to 2006.

9. That the reserved matter of layout shall include access up to the 
boundary with the adjacent land to the east with no ransom strip and to a 
standard to facilitate the construction of a shared surface street within 
the adjacent land as defined by the Cumbria Development Design Guide 
Part 1 New Residential Development [Cumbria County Council].

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To facilitate the development of the remainder of the allocated site REC 
43.

10. That the reserved matter of layout shall include pedestrian access up to 
the boundary with the adjacent land to the east in such a position that it 
may be reasonably extended through to Dunlin Drive as part of any 
future development of the adjacent land.

Reason

To facilitate the development of the remainder of the allocated site REC 
43, to aid the sustainability of all development on allocated site REC 43, 
to accord with saved policy E17.

11. Prior to the occupation of the 20th dwelling a programme for the 
completion of the estate roads including footways and the works referred 
to in conditions 9 & 10 above where shown shall have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and the estate roads 
shall then be completed in accordance with the approved programme 
and the details approved under condition 8 above. If the estate road is 
not adopted as a public highway, then full details of the proposed 
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the proposed 
streets within the development shall, in addition to the aforementioned 
programme, be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority. 
The streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the 
approved management and maintenance details”.

Reason

To ensure that a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and 
vehicles is delivered and to accord with saved policy E2 of the Local 
Plan Review 1996 to 2006.

Drainage Conditions

12. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water 
drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the 
National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of 
the site conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority.

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the 
Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards and 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no 
surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either 
directly or indirectly.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



The drainage scheme submitted for approval shall also be in accordance 
with the principles set out in the Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage 
Strategy ref K35004/01/FRA/JJ issue B dated July 2018 proposing 
surface water discharging to an attenuation basin to the east of the site. 
The development shall be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To secure the objectives of the Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage 
Statement, the consultation response of the County Council as Lead 
Local Flood Authority, the consultation response of United Utilities, to 
promote sustainable development and to secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in 
light of policies within the NPPF and NPPG.

13. Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage 
management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the planning authority. 
The sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan shall 
include as a minimum:

a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory 
undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a management 
company; and

b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all 
elements of the sustainable drainage system to secure the operation 
of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and 
managed in accordance with the approved drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development

Reason

To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution during the lifetime of the development, to secure compliance 
with the consultation responses of the County Council as Lead Local 
Flood Authority and United Utilities.

14. Details of all measures to be taken by the developer to prevent surface 
water discharging onto the highway shall be submitted to the Planning 
Authority for approval prior to the beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development. Any approved works shall be implemented prior to the 
occupation of the respective dwelling and shall be permanently 
maintained operational thereafter.

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To minimise dangers to highway users from potential flooding and to 
give effect to the requirements of the County Council as Highway and 
Lead Local Flood Authority.

15. Foul drainage shall be provided prior to the occupation of any dwelling in 
accordance with the foul drainage strategy contained within the Flood 
Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy ref K35004/01/ FRA/JJ Issue B 
dated 12th July 2018 and in accordance with further details of the route 
of the sewer and details of the location of the pumping station including 
measures to mitigate the risk of flood and which must have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority prior to 
the commencement of development.

Reason

To ensure that there is an acceptable and sustainable means of sewage 
disposal. 

Ground Investigation conditions

16. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk 
study, site reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to 
investigate and assess the risk of potential contamination, is submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. This investigation 
must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated 
Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination 
(CLR11)).

Reason

To assess the potential for ground contamination in the interests of 
human health and the environment.

17. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a 
Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the 
Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall be 
undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination and 
must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
before any development begins.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To assess the potential for ground contamination in the interests of 
human health and the environment.

18. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The 
scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options and proposal of 
the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification plan. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land 
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the 
intended use.

Reason

To ensure that if contamination is found that a scheme is prepared to 
mitigate any harm in the interests of human health and the environment

19. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 
Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority, prior to occupation of the development.

Reason

To ensure that any harm posed by contamination is mitigated.

20. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Planning Authority. Development on the part 
of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall be 
carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, remediation 
and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to 
occupation of the development.

Reason

To ensure measures are in place to address any unexpected 
contamination.

21. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure that no contamination is accidentally brought onto the site via 
imported material.

Landscaping/bio diversity conditions

22. Boundary hedgerows with the exception of where required to be 
removed to secure compliance with condition 5 above shall be protected 
during the course of the development in accordance with a scheme 
which must have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority prior to the laying out of any road with the exception 
of the access referred to under condition 5 above and prior to the 
excavation of the foundations for any dwelling.

Reason

To secure the recommendations of Ecological Appraisal ref 4473 
[envirotech], to protect the boundary hedgerows which are an important 
feature both visually in the context of the countryside location of the 
application site but also ecologically as recognised in the ecological 
information which supports the application and to accord with the 
Council's biodiversity SPD.

23. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, detailed proposals for the 
management of the retained hedgerows shall have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The hedgerows shall 
subsequently be managed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To secure the recommendations of Ecological Appraisal ref 4473 
[envirotech] and to accord with the Council's biodiversity SPD.

24. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling measures to provide biodiversity 
enhancement measures based on the Ecological Appraisal ref 4473 
[envirotech] shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority including a scheme of phasing. The development 
shall only proceed in accordance with the approved details including the 
approved phasing scheme.

Reason

To secure the recommendations of Ecological Appraisal ref 4473 
[envirotech] and to accord with the Council's biodiversity SPD.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



25. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved matters of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons 
following occupation of any part of the development, or in accordance 
with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with the Planning 
Authority. Any trees, hedgerows or plants which within a period of five 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the 
Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to accord with 
saved policy D29.

Open space

26. The development shall be laid out to include areas of open space based 
on the illustrative layout plan reference: job no 18034 drawing no 05 rev 
D.

Reason

To ensure adequate open space is provided for both visual and 
functional purposes including compliance with saved policy G9.

27. Prior to the commencement of any development a Construction 
Management Plan shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The Statement should cover all phases of the 
development and take account of all contractors or sub-contractors and 
must be submitted for approval by the Planning Authority, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The Statement shall include:

i. Details of phasing of the construction work including a programme of 
work for the construction phase; 

ii. A Traffic Management Plan to include all construction traffic 
associated with the development, including haul routes, timings of 
deliveries, unloading facilities, and on site parking provision for all 
contractors vehicles, (including any phasing of this parking 
provision); 

iii. Procedures to monitor and mitigate noise and vibration from the 
construction and demolition and to monitor any properties at risk of 
damage from vibration, as well as taking into account noise from 
plant, machinery, vehicles and deliveries, with reference to BS 5228 
- Code of Practice for Noise and Vibration control on Construction 
and Open Sites. All measurements should make reference to BS 
7445 - Description and Measurement of Environmental Noise; 

iv. Hours of working and deliveries; 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



v. Mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts on residential 
properties from construction compounds including visual impact, 
noise, dust and light pollution; 

vi. Mitigation measures to control the emissions of dust and dirt during 
construction and demolition; 

vii. A written procedure for dealing with complaints regarding the 
construction or demolition; A site log book to record details and 
action taken in response to exceptional noisy incidents or dust-
causing episodes. It should also be used to record the results of 
routine site inspections; 

viii. Details of lighting to be used on site; 
ix. Mitigation measures, where appropriate, to ensure that no harm is 

caused to protected species during construction;
x. The provision of facilities for the cleaning of vehicle tyres where haul 

routes meet the public highway to avoid deposition of mud/debris on 
the public highway and the generation of dust.

xi. Management of surface water during the construction phase;

Reason

In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental 
amenities of the locality.

Restrictions on permitted development

28. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order, 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no external 
lighting other than the street ·lighting approved under condition 7 shall 
be installed unless it is in accordance with details that have previously 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of light 
sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting, which is so installed, 
shall not thereafter be altered, other than for routine maintenance which 
does not change its details, without the prior consent in writing of the 
Planning Authority.

Reason

To minimise light pollution in accordance with policy 063 of the Barrow 
Local Plan Review 1996-2006, and in order to protect the rural amenities 
of the area which includes taking account of general mitigation 
requirements for bats.

29. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order, 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no fences or 
walls shall be erected around the perimeter of the application site unless 
in accordance with details which have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To assist in the integration of the development into the surrounding 
landscape.

529 – Withdrawn Application

The following application had been withdrawn from the Agenda:-

2018/0817 – Minor material amendment to allow a revised house type on plot 12 via 
a variation of Condition No. 2 (approved plans) for planning permission 
2016/0126 (Erection of 13 dwellings) at Hayswater Drive, Dalton-in-
Furness.

The meeting closed at 3.02 p.m.

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

16/04/2019

26/02/2019

01/04/2019

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B31/2019/0190

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
21/03/2019

Location:
39 Dundee Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 2RP

Proposal:
Application for a non-material amendment
following grant of planning permission 2018/0639
(Rear living room extension to replace existing
conservatory) to amend roof design of rear
extension from hipped roof to a fibre glass warm
flat roof with a raised glass lantern.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0228

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
28/03/2019

Location:
Phase 4, Housing Development Site,
Meadowlands Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 10 (boundary hedgerow protection
measures) of planning permission 2018/0598
(Erection of 7 dwellings)

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0111

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/03/2019

Location:
20 Skelgate Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8BD

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension to form a kitchen

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0005

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/03/2019

Location:
44 Black Butts Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3AW

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming extended
kitchen, dining room and bathroom and new
boundary wall.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0129

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/03/2019

Location:
15 Myrtle Terrace Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8BU

Proposal:
Double storey side extension to provide ground
floor kitchen, utility and shower room with first floor
ensuite bedroom.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B26/2019/0066

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
01/03/2019

Location:
North Morecambe Terminal (NMT), Rampside
Road, Barrow-in-Furness

Proposal:
Application for a certificate of lawfulness of
proposed use or development for disposal of
condensate by HGV tankers and  provision of
pipework, modification of pumps and provision of
associated equipment.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0077

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/02/2019

Location:
62 Dane Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 4JY

Proposal:
Rear extension to provide kitchen, living area,
utility room and wc.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0148

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
25/03/2019

Location:
12 Middle Hill Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9HD

Proposal:
Extension to existing ground floor bedroom to
accommodate improved bathroom and changing
facilities.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2019/0102

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/03/2019

Location:
King Alfred Hotel Ocean Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3DU

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension with flat roof forming a
new female toilet block.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0103

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
18/03/2019

Location:
111 115 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 1HZ

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display non illuminated
acrylic sign to the front elevation to cover 1
redundant ATM

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0091

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
08/03/2019

Location:
7 Windermere Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4LN

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming a garage with
utility room at ground floor, wrapped around at
rear/side to attach onto a rear single storey
extension forming extended kitchen, dining room.
Front garage converted into sitting room and
internal alterations (re-submission 2018/0152)

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B23/2019/0040

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/03/2019

Location:
49 Moor Road, Marton, Cumbria, LA12 0NJ

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent to replace existing modern
staircase in the barn with one of a shallower
gradient.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0055

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
27/02/2019

Location:
21 Hadleigh Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0GR

Proposal:
Demolition of existing conservatory and
construction of new single storey rear extension to
form enlarged kitchen

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0132

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/03/2019

Location:
4 Chapel Field Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3RQ

Proposal:
Removal of condition No. 2 (Use of Garage) for
planning permission 2002/0878 Erection of 32
dwellings and associated infrastructure to allow for
the use of the garage as a bedroom/playroom

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0052

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/02/2019

Location:
96 Glenridding Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PA

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension forming a sunroom.
Removal of existing garage, and creation of a side
store room.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0059

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
06/03/2019

Location:
Former Frankie and Bennys, Hindpool Retail Park,
Hindpool Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14
2PD (eastern half of building).

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display 2 internally
illuminated fascia signs, 3 internal poster signs and
one internal vinyl graphic sign.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0070

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/02/2019

Location:
22 Teal Close Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16
7JF

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension to kitchen and re-
modeling of existing conservatory to form garden
room open to kitchen. Addition of an open porch to
front elevation (re-submission of 2018/0788)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0079

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/03/2019

Location:
37A Ulverston Road Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8EF

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey rear extension forming
extended kitchen, utility room and wc at ground
floor with extended 3rd bedroom, en-suite and
bathroom at first floor.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0117

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
06/03/2019

Location:
Rose Cottage Newton Cross Road Newton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0NB

Proposal:
Extension to form kitchen/living area, demolition of
detached garage and rebuilding

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0033

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/02/2019

Location:
4 Grantley Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5QE

Proposal:
Rear living area and kitchen extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0036

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/03/2019

Location:
Sacred Heart Church Lumley Street Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for works to trees subject to Tree
Preservation Order 2009 no.9 - T1,T2,T3, T4 and
T6 (as shown on the plan) To crown lift over
canopy, remove stub cuts, clear around BT lines
and reduce back from building to give 1-2m
clearance
T5 (as shown on the plan) Crown reduce away
from the building

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B26/2019/0100

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
08/03/2019

Location:
20 Teal Close Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16
7JF

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD)to
remove existing rear conservatory and replace with
an Orangery

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0105

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
13/03/2019

Location:
Corandirk Saves Lane Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7DY

Proposal:
Rear ground extension and new dormer at first
floor level (Resubmission of B21/2018/0344)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0119

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/03/2019

Location:
6 Lamb Croft Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9DG

Proposal:
Erection of a side extension to provide utility room
and wet room

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0068

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/02/2019

Location:
Phase 4 Housing Development Site, Meadowlands
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 3 (carriageway  details), No. 4
(surface water drainage details), No. 8 (measures
to prevent surface water discharging onto highway)
and No. 9 (verification report regarding roads and
footways and phasing) of planning permission
B13/2018/0598 (Erection of 7 dwellings)

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B18/2019/0071

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/02/2019

Location:
22 Teal Close Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16
7JF

Proposal:
Application for removal or variation of a condition
No. 3 following grant of planning permission
6/2001/1060 to convert the garage to form a new
entrance hallway and ground floor wc as existing
front door opens directly into living room.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B26/2018/0848

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
07/03/2019

Location:
2 Myrtle Terrace Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8BP

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD) for a
dormer loft conversion

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B28/2019/0086

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/03/2019

Location:
4 Monks Croft Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1EP

Proposal:
Application for works to trees subject of Tree
Preservation Order 1998 No. 4 _ Crown thin tree
by 20%, removal of crossing rubbing branches and
thinning the tree further by 20% to achieve a lighter
canopy at the old reduction points and remove
minor growth extending close to the existing
houses.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0089

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/03/2019

Location:
15 Melampus Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3QJ

Proposal:
Conversion and extension of rear kitchen into living
area and shower room,  Re-positioning of kitchen
in existing living room.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0092

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/03/2019

Location:
22 Stackwood Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9HG

Proposal:
Two storey side extension forming garage, utility
and  W.C. at ground floor level with  first floor
ensuite bedroom above.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B07/2018/0798

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/03/2019

Location:
Proposed Housing Development at Dalton Lane
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Section 73 Application for the removal of Condition
No. 9(Means of access) of approved planning
permission B07/2015/0707 (Outline planning
application for approximately 142 dwellings with
associated open space and landscaping, with all
matters reserved) to provide alternative access by
the means of a right hand turn ghost island
arrangement into the site from Dalton Lane

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B28/2019/0037

Decision:
PARTIAL

Decision Date:
26/02/2019

Location:
Sowerby Lodge (Land north of) Bank Lane Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
condition No. 11 (Construction Method Statement),
No. 14 ( details of finish to solar panels), No. 17
(details of control room), No. 18 (Details of access
track) and No. 20 (details of boundary fencing) for
planning permission 2015/0614 (Proposed
installation of a 4.17 MW solar farm and
associated development)

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0007

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/03/2019

Location:
Garth House Saves Lane Ireleth Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria LA16 7EQ

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area)
Ash Tree (T1 as shown on the plan) Crown reduce
the spread away from neighbouring properites,
remove 6ft from crown height and prune any
deadwood.
Walnut Tree (T2 as shown on the plan) Crown lift
lower limbs

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B21/2019/0046

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/03/2019

Location:
5 Armon Close, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
0SY

Proposal:
Two storey side extension to form dining area and
enlarged bedroom

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B28/2019/0108

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/03/2019

Location:
Eastchurch Villas Littlestone Close Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 3 (part window details), No. 6
(Preliminary site investigation), No.7 (Field
investigation and risk assessment), No. 8
(Remediation scheme) and No. 11 (Soil testing
methodology) of planning permission 2018/0240
(Change of use and conversion of public house
(class A4) to form three dwelling houses (class C3)
including demolition of existing structures and
erection of new side extensions and detached
garages)

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2018/0819

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/03/2019

Location:
87 King Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8EN

Proposal:
Dormer loft conversion to the front and rear
elevations to form bedroom.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B31/2019/0183

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/03/2019

Location:
7 Gilpin Walk Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3UP

Proposal:
Application for a non-material amendment
following grant of planning permission
B21/2016/0698 (Erection of a two storey extension
with attic room and detached garage) to allow:
Removal of first floor slot window.
Addition of single pane window in en-suite.
Replacement of twin pane bedroom window with
larger three pane unit.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0199

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
05/03/2019

Location:
13 Infield Gardens Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9JW

Proposal:
Rear kitchen extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
14/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0112

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/02/2019

Location:
20 Holbeck Park Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RE

Proposal:
First floor bedroom extension above existing
garage.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
06/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0065

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
29/01/2019

Location:
252 254 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1PN

Proposal:
Block stairwell to restaurant to create storage
area and sub divide lounge to form new
bedroom with access corridor.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0130/
MAST

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
11/02/2019

Location:
Housing Development Site and Land Toid
Number 5000005160944968 Meadowlands
Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of 7 dwellings.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/03/2019

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0212

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
07/03/2019

Location:
43 Belvedere Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0HS

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
07/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0213

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
07/03/2019

Location:
21 North Row Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HF

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
22/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0110

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/02/2019

Location:
127 131 Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Proposed office remodel.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
20/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0129

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/02/2019

Location:
15 Myrtle Terrace Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8BU

Proposal:
Double storey side extension to provide
kitchen, utility room, shower room with first
floor bedroom and ensuite.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/03/2019

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0031

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
15/01/2019

Location:
Harding Rise House Harding Rise Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Two storey new build office building with
associated car parking and landscaping.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
11/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0113

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/02/2019

Location:
Former Frankie and Bennys Hindpool Retail
Park Hindpool Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2PD

Proposal:
Cosmetic refit.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
29/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0039

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
16/01/2019

Location:
4 Kirkby Gardens Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3SQ

Proposal:
Loft conversion

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
13/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0041

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/01/2019

Location:
30 Sheeplands Grove Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AS

Proposal:
Rear and side single storey pitched roof
extension and attached garage.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/03/2019

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0165

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
21/02/2019

Location:
2 Bermuda Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3DJ

Proposal:
Single storey rear and side extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
07/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0270

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/03/2019

Location:
23 Kestrel Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QA

Proposal:
Wetroom adaptation.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/03/2019

Reference
Number:
PI/2019/0268

Application
Type:
Partner
Authority
Inspections

Received:
27/03/2019

Location:
12 Beach Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3YA

Proposal:
Replace conservatory roof with Guardian solid
roof system.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
27/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0269

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/03/2019

Location:
The Grange Long Lane Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0PF

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/03/2019

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0021

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
09/01/2019

Location:
Caravan at Land Toid 1000000222592999
Riverside Gardens Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0DD

Proposal:
New dwelling.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
08/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0027

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
14/01/2019

Location:
59 61 Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1RW

Proposal:
Conversion of restaurant to 2 flats, renovation
of 4 no. flats and extension forming 3 no. flats.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/02/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0054

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
22/01/2019

Location:
82 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1JH

Proposal:
Reduction of retail space/ conversion of
remaining space to four 1 bed flats and one 2
bed flat.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0280

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
01/04/2019

Location:
1 Long Lane Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
0PF

Proposal:
Rear kitchen extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
01/04/2019

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0096

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/02/2019

Location:
6 Severn Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3TT

Proposal:
Demolition of existing porch, garage and utility
room; construction of new single storey front,
side and rear extensions to form enlarged
kitchen/diner, utility room, shower room and
play room.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
06/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0173

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
22/02/2019

Location:
1 Greystone Mount Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8PT

Proposal:
Removal of internal load bearing wall.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
28/02/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0181

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/02/2019

Location:
80 Coronation Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8QH

Proposal:
Conversion of outhouse to habitable
accommodation with kitchen and removal of
external gable wall.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
11/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0184

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/02/2019

Location:
145 Rampside Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0PX

Proposal:
Formation of bathroom in existing loft.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/02/2019

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0183

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/02/2019

Location:
152 North Row Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HQ

Proposal:
Conversion of outhouse to form a ground floor
shower room.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/02/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0185

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/02/2019

Location:
36 Headland Rise Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3YP

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/02/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0204

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
06/03/2019

Location:
2 Howe Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5TL

Proposal:
Re build outrigger and full house renovation
including thermal upgrade and alterations to
support upper floor structures.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
06/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0095

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/02/2019

Location:
17 Keppelwray Drive Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4NQ

Proposal:
Proposed front and rear extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/03/2019

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0119

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
07/02/2019

Location:
6 Lamb Croft Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9DG

Proposal:
Side utility room and wet room extension, loft
conversion with en-suite.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
11/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0192

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2019

Location:
9 Irwell Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3WA

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0194

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2019

Location:
15 Shakespeare Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5RE

Proposal:
Rear store extension.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0200

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
05/03/2019

Location:
5 Wellington Street Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8AN

Proposal:
Internal alterations including inserting two
steel beams and replacement windows and
doors.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
05/03/2019

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0201

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/03/2019

Location:
23 Parklands Drive Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7JP

Proposal:
Dormer loft conversion and internal alterations
to open up kitchen.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/03/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0214

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
07/03/2019

Location:
12 Aspen Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0RL

Proposal:
Rear two storey extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
22/03/2019

Reference
Number:
RA/2019/0220

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
11/03/2019

Location:
6 Avon Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3EL

Proposal:
Installation of multi fuel stove.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
11/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0222

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
12/03/2019

Location:
63 Rakesmoor Lane Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4LQ

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
12/03/2019

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0229

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/03/2019

Location:
42 Hill Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4EY

Proposal:
Removal of internal walls to enlarge kitchen
and re-roof existing lean to pitched roof.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0230

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/03/2019

Location:
2 Sedgefield Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0TN

Proposal:
Supalite roof with full height walls to include
one window and one set of patio doors.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/03/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0180

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
26/02/2019

Location:
8 Beach Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3YA

Proposal:
Rear single storey pitched roof kitchen/ dining
room extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
26/02/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0254

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
25/03/2019

Location:
48 Cloisters Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0BA

Proposal:
Removal of loading bearing wall in kitchen and
install an RSJ, thermal upgrade of walls and
replace windows and doors with UPVC.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
25/03/2019

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

16th April 2019 
 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 103

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



B23/2019/0149 
Planning Committee 

16
th
 April 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B23/2019/0149 Date Valid :06/03/2019 

Address : Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2LD 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Listed Building Consent for internal alterations to existing ground floor office 
area and reception. 

Ward : Central Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr B Vickers, Barrow Borough 
Council  

Agent : Mr Chris Bugler, Chris Bugler 
Architect Ltd  

Statutory Date : 01/05/2019 
Recommendation : Listed Building 
Consent be Granted 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D15 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D18 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE1 - Heritage 
Assets and their setting 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE3 - Listed 
Buildings 

Summary of Main Issues 

As a listed building the main consideration is the impact of the proposals upon the 
significance of the listed building and its setting. 

Non Material Considerations 
 
None 

Page 2 of 103

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site and press notices. 

No neighbours listed as consulted. 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 
Heritage Trust For The North West 
Historic England (North West) 
Joint Committee of the National Amenity Society 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 07/03/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals.” 

Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 07/03/2019  

“no comment”  

Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 12/03/2019  

"I am writing to thank you for consulting me on the above application and to confirm that I 
have no objections and do not wish to make any comments or recommendations. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries regarding the above." 

Historic England (North West) 19/03/2019  

"Thank you for your letter of 7 March 2019 regarding the above application for listed building 
consent. On the basis of the information available to date, we do not wish to offer any 
comments. We suggest that you seek the views of your specialist conservation adviser. 

Page 3 of 103

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

It is not necessary for us to be consulted on this application again, unless there are material 
changes to the proposals. However, if you would like detailed advice from us, please contact 
us to explain your request." 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1This application relates to Barrow Town Hall, a Grade II* listed building sited prominently 
on Duke Street. The building dates from 1882-87 and is constructed of red sandstone with a 
slate roof; it is also located within the Barrow Central Conservation Area. Grade II* buildings 
are particularly important buildings of more than special interest; only 5.8% of listed buildings 
nationally are Grade II*. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Listed Building Consent is sought for internal alterations to the existing ground floor office 
area and reception adjacent to the Cornwallis Street entrance. The former entrance hall is 
used as a first contact point for the public with queries for the Borough Council. The current 
proposal is to make alterations to the existing office layout and reception counter to meet the 
changing needs of the Council. The proposed alterations involve the partial removal of 
modern partitions, doors and barrelled timber ceilings and the creation of a re-positioned 
reception counter and private office space.The new office layout is to be formed from timber 
stud partitioning taken to a new timber ceiling approximately 2.6m high. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1990/0111 Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness Listed Building Consent for 
installation of four floodlights Appcond 22/03/1990 
 
3.2 86/1991/0557 Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness Listed Building Consent for 
erection of two cameras and microwave link on third floor front elevation Approved 
26/09/1991 
 
3.3 86/1992/0592 Barrow Borough Council Town Hall Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA14 2LD Listed Building Consent to install lift to public rooms at Central Reception and 
Queens Hall (First Floor) Appcond 22/01/1993 
 
3.4 86/2000/0931 Barrow Borough Council Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LD 
Listed Building Consent for removal of existing revolving doors and replacement with 
automatic sliding doors and creation of disabled ramped access. Sos 07/02/2001 
 
3.5 86/2005/0790 Town Hall (Payments Hall) Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 
2LD Listed Building Consent for alterations to the payments hall to suit revised working 
arrangements Sos 09/08/2005 
 

Page 4 of 103

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



3.6 86/2005/0791 Town Hall (Central Reception), Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 
LA14 2LD Listed Building Consent for alterations to the central reception area involved in 
providing improved disabled access and revised working arrangements Sos 09/08/2005 
 
3.7 86/2006/0878 Town Hall - Central Reception Area Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 2LD Listed Building Consent for a replacement central reception desk and 
platform lift (revised application to ref 2005/0791 in a revised form) APPLETT 12/10/2006 
 
3.8 86/2006/1382 Town Hall Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LD Listed 
Building Consent to modify entrance to deputy finance officers office. Approved 08/01/2007 
 
3.9 B18/2014/0305 Town Hall Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LD Installation 
of a FM transmission arial and codec dish onto the flat roof of the town hall clock tower. 
Appcond 08-OCT-2014 
 
3.10 B23/2008/0179 Town Hall Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LD Listed 
Building Consent for a revised layout to first floor male toilets including partial removal of 
internal, non-load bearing wall. APPLETT 25/06/2008 
 
3.11 B23/2014/0199 Town Hall Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LD Listed 
Building Consent for the formation of new corridor involving two new openings in internal 
masonry walls, removal of internal partitions including original partitions, associated doors, 
extension of existing mezzanine floor, new partitions as part Appcond 27/06/2014 
 
3.12 B23/2014/0306 Town Hall Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LD Listed 
Building Consent to mount an FM transmitter and codec dish onto the flat roof of the town hall 
clock tower Appcond 08-OCT-2014 
 
3.13 B23/2018/0356 Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2LD Listed 
Building Consent to install a heritage plaque (490 mm in diameter) on Duke Street elevation 
APPCOND 07/08/2018 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 Following recent changes to the legislation, Local Authorities can now determine their own 
applications subject to the statutory bodies having no objections to the proposals. 

4.2 Chapter 16 of the NPPF covers conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

4.3 Paragraph 193  advises: " When considering the impact of a proposed development on 
the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than 
substantial harm to its significance." 

 

 

Page 5 of 103

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



4.4 Paragraph 194 advises:" Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage 
asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require 
clear and convincing justification." It advises that substantial harm to or loss of  assets of the 
highest significance, which includes grade II* listed buildings,  should be wholly exceptional.  

4.5 In addition to the normal planning framework set out in the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides specific 
protection for buildings and areas of special architectural or historic interest. Any decisions 
relating to listed buildings and their settings and conservation areas must address the 
statutory considerations of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
( in particular sections 16 and 72) as well as satisfying the relevant policies within the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the Local Plan. 

Saved Policies 

4.6 Policy D15 seeks to ensure that development within conservation areas serves to 
preserve or enhance them. 

4.7 Policy D18 aims to protect architectural appearance and historic features. 

Emerging Policies 

4.8 Policy HE1 echoes the requirements of the Act and the NPPF in seeking to safeguard 
heritage assets and their setting. 

4.9 Policy HE3 seeks to safeguard listed buildings and their setting. 

4.10 As a listed building within the conservation area the main consideration is the impact of 
the proposals on heritage assets and their setting. 

4.11 All of the works are internal so there is no impact on the conservation area. 

4.12 The existing office partitions to be removed are generally modern and do not contribute to 
the significance of the Town Hall as a listed building. The space has been altered over the 
years in a fairly piecemeal fashion meaning that the key elements of the space, namely the 
stone pilasters and arches and the timber paneling are only viewed in the form of glimpses.  
Additionally, some of the existing structures, in particular the timber barrel ceilings, are out of 
scale and character and detract from the listed building. The proposals result in modest 
changes to layout and have been designed to minimise any impact on historic fabric and the 
more neutral appearance of the proposed partitions is considered to be less intrusive than the 
existing arrangement of modern partitions and barreled interview booths. 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 103

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposals are considered to be acceptable in relation to the impact on the listed 
building and its setting and the requirements of national and local plan policy and Section 16 
of the Act in relation to listed buildings. The bulk of the works relate to previously added 
alterations the removal and replacement of which will not adversely affect the historic fabric. 

6. Recommendation 
 
6.1 I recommend that Listed Building Consent be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with the 
application dated as valid on 6.3.2019 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent: 
Existing Floor Plan Drawing No 532/01 
Proposed Floor Plan Drawing No 532/02 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved by 
the Planning Authority in the interests of the special character and architectural appearance 
of the Grade II* listed building. 
 
Informative 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

 You will need to contact us again if you want to carry out work on the listed building 
which is not referred to in your plans. This includes: 
 
a. any extra work which is necessary after further assessments of the building's 
condition; 
b. stripping out or structural investigations; and 
c. any work needed to meet the building regulations or other forms of statutory control. 
 
It is a criminal offence to carry out work on a listed building without our consent. 
Please remind your client, consultants, contractors and subcontractors of the terms 
and conditions of this consent. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 7 of 103

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



2 22 2
2 22 22 22 2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2
2

2

2

2

2 2

2

2 2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2 2 2 2 2 2

2 2

2

2

2 2 2 2

2 2

2

2

CCTV

2

CCTV

2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2

2

2

2

2

1350 2

2

2

CCTV

FIRST POINT LAYOUT
GROUND FLOOR
TOWN HALL
BARROW-IN-FURNESS

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

FEB 19 CB1:100 @ A1

532/01

EXISTING FLOOR PLAN

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Scale:

Drawing No:

Drawn:

Rev:

Date:

This drawing is ©Chris Bugler Architect and
can only be reproduced with the approval of
the author.

Dimensions should not be scaled

GENERAL OFFICE 4

OFFICE

Retain Office 7 and 8
with no alterations

remove interview booths complete
retain existing carpet

carefully remove reception
desk and keep for reuse

retain structural
partition

alter partition below
2.7m to suit new layout

retain structural
partition

retain partition
remove door
and frame for reuse

remove partition up to
existing ceiling height

2019/0149

Page 8 of 103

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 8



2

90
0 

mi
n

FIRST POINT LAYOUT
GROUND FLOOR
TOWN HALL
BARROW-IN-FURNESS

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

FEB 19 CB1:50 @ A1

532/02

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

Client:

Job Title:

Drawing Title:

Scale:

Drawing No:

Drawn:

Rev:

Date:

This drawing is ©Chris Bugler Architect and
can only be reproduced with the approval of
the author.

Dimensions should not be scaled

RECEPTION

SECTION AA

A A

B

B

PHONE
BOOTH

EXISTING
ANCILLARY
AREA
retain ceiling
hgt nom 3.5m

NEW OFFICE
new ceiling hgt
nom 2.7m

EXISTING OFFICE
no change

EXISTING OFFICE
no change

vertical fixing of new
partition to existing
modern partition

from new phone booth
in 2.7m high self supporting
timber partition, nom 25mm off existing walls
no fixing to historic fabric

vertical fixing of new
partition to existing
modern partition

infill existing door with sound resisting partition

fit existing door into
existing partition

install existing
reception desk

vertical fixing of new
partition to existing partition

vertical fixing of new
partition to existing partition

vertical fixing of new
partition to existing
modern partition

alter existing partition up to existing ceiling hgt
to form access to new reception. Fit new partition
to suit.

alter existing partition up to existing ceiling hgt
to form access to new reception. Fit new partition
to suit.

NEW OFFICE
new ceiling hgt
nom 2.7m

new ceiling hgt to coincide with horizontal rail
of existing modern glazed partition to
 facilitate new horizontal fixing of new ceiling

new ceiling hgt to coincide with horizontal rail
of existing modern glazed partition to
 facilitate new horizontal fixing of new ceiling

trim new ceiling around column
no fixing permitted. Note infill
gap with sound deadening quilt

SECTION BB

install existing
reception desk

2019/0149

Page 9 of 103

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0069 
Planning Committee  

16
th
 April 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0069 Date Valid :01/02/2019 

Address : Street Record North Scale, 
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Change of use of waste land to public amenity space including the installation 
of a sandstone block and metal viking longboat structure. 

Ward : Walney North Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr D Barlow North Scale 
Residents Association  

Agent : Mr D Barlow North Scale Residents 
Association   

Statutory Date : 29/03/2019 
Recommendation :  Permission be 
granted subject to conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D15 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI1 - Green 

Infrastructure 
5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE1 - Heritage 

Assets and their setting 
6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE3 - Listed 

Buildings 
7. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HE4 - 

Conservation Areas 

Page 10 of 103

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is the impact of the proposal on the amenity of the area, taking into account 
any potential impact on the natural environment and on any adjacent neighbouring 
properties. The site falls within North Scale Conservation Area and opposite a listed 
building and the impact on heritage assets and their setting is also relevant. 

Non Material Considerations 

The suggestion that money should be spent elsewhere. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site and press notices. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
North Scale 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

One representation has been received from a neighbouring property based on the 
following: 

-sculpture would cause difficulty in viewing on-coming traffic when exiting driveway; 

-it would spoil the peace and quiet of their garden; 

-money should be spent on kennels car park instead with seating there having better views 
down the Channel. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Natural England 
  
 
 

Page 11 of 103

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



 
 

List of Organisation Responses 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 11/02/2019  

"Our response is the following: 

This part of the BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) 2001 Regulations. There are no objections to the 
proposed development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the 
proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of the site. 
Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear 
Regulation, have certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in 
this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the 
appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site.  Accordingly I would be 
grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, advise the applicant to 
liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Cumbria County Council 11/02/2019  

Highway Authority 

“It is considered that the proposal will not have a material effect on existing highway 
conditions.  I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the 
proposal. 

Please note a PROW (number 601036) lies adjacent to the site. The Applicant must ensure 
that no obstruction to the footpath occurs during, or after the completion of the site works. 

Reason: To support Local Transport Plan Policy W1, W2. 

Lead Local Flood Authority  

Taking into account the scale of the proposed development I can confirm that the Lead 
Local Flood Authority has no objection to the proposal." 

 Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 06/02/2019  

"We have no objection to the proposal as submitted, but would like to make the following 
comment. 

Environmental permit - advice to applicant 

The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a permit to 
be obtained for any activities which will take place: 

 on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal) 
 on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culvert (16 metres if tidal) 

Page 12 of 103

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



 on or within 16 metres of a sea defence 
 involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood defence 

(including a remote defence) or culvert 
 in a floodplain more than 8 metres from the river bank, culvert or flood defence 

structure (16 metres if it’s a tidal main river) and you don’t already have 
planning permission. 

For further guidance please visit https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits or contact our National Customer Contact Centre on 03702 422 
549. The applicant should not assume that a permit will automatically be forthcoming once 
planning permission has been granted, and we advise them to consult with us at the 
earliest opportunity." 

Natural England 19/03/2019 

"Thank you for your consultation on the above dated and received by Natural England on 
26 February 2019 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that 
the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present 
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. 

SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND’S ADVICE 

NO OBJECTION 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected nature conservation sites 
or landscapes. 

Natural England’s generic advice on other natural environment issues is set out at Annex A. 

European sites 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have likely significant effects on statutorily protected sites and has no objection to 
the proposed development. To meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations, we 
advise you to record your decision that a likely significant effect can be ruled out. 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have likely significant effects on statutorily protected sites and has no objection to 
the proposed development. 

 

 

Page 13 of 103

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones 

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk 
Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be used during the planning application validation 
process to help local planning authorities decide when to consult Natural England on 
developments likely to affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from 
the data.gov.uk website. 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other natural 
environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the meantime you 
have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further information 
on this consultation please send your correspondences to 
consultations@naturalengland.org.uk.  

 

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 This application relates to a roughly triangular area of land on the eastern side of the 
road immediately on entering North Scale. It is bounded to the west by the road, to the 
north and east by the garden of 6 North Scale. To the south is a path that leads to the 
shingle beach and bay and a boat storage area. The site has a low birdsmouth fence to the 
north, south and western boundaries with the eastern boundary being formed by the wall of 
6 North Scale; its appearance is somewhat unkempt with broken fencing, overgrown grass, 
and scrub. Aerial photography suggests that the site was used for parking and boat storage 
until about 2003 when the boats were re-sited and the site fenced off to facilitate an 
environmental improvement scheme. The site is Council-owned but the local Residents 
Association are hoping to carry out the work, hence it needs to be considered by Planning 
Committee. 

1.2 The site falls within the North Scale Conservation Area and No. 1 North Scale 
immediately opposite is listed, as are No's 10 and 12, approximately 35m to the north. 
Additionally, a public footpath runs to the south and east of the site. A RAMSAR and SSSI 
are to the east. 

 

 

Page 14 of 103

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



 

2.Proposal Details 

2.1 This application relates to the change of use of waste-land to a public amenity space 
including the installation of a sandstone block and metal viking longboat structure. The 
submitted plans indicate the provision of turf with a central paved area accommodating a 
sandstone block with a metal miniature viking longboat affixed. Three small interpretative 
plaques are proposed to provide historical information and two small sandstone blocks are 
proposed as short-spell seating. Wooden posts with rope are proposed as a boundary 
treatment and to reflect North Scale's maritime heritage. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 No history revealed for this application 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 The NPPF seeks to encourage good design and sustainable development. Chapters in 
the guidance also cover healthy and safe environments, the natural environment and the 
historic environment. 

4.2 Paragraph 92 advises:"To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and 
services the community needs, planning policies and decisions should: a) plan positively for 
the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities (such as local shops, meeting 
places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship) 
and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential 
environments." 

4.3 Paragraph 96 advises: " Access to a network of high quality open spaces and 
opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the health and well-being of 
communities." 

4.4 Paragraph 124 advises: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is 
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good design 
is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work 
and helps make development acceptable to communities." 

4.5 In terms of heritage paragraph 185 advises "the desirability of new development making 
a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness; and seeking "opportunities to 
draw on the contribution made by the historic environment to the character of a place." 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 103

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



4.6 Paragraph 192 advises: " In determining applications, local planning authorities should 
take account of: a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; b) the positive 
contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable communities 
including their economic vitality; and c) the desirability of new development making a 
positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness."  
 
4.7 Paragraph 200 continues: " Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for 
new development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the 
setting of heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that 
preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or 
which better reveal its significance) should be treated favourably." 

4.8 In addition to the normal planning framework set out in the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides 
specific protection for buildings and areas of special architectural or historic interest. Any 
decisions relating to listed buildings and their settings and conservation areas must address 
the statutory considerations of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 ( in particular sections 66 and 72) as well as satisfying the relevant policies within the 
National Planning Policy Framework and the Local Plan. 

Saved Policies 

Relevant policies relate to design and impact on heritage assets 

4.8 Policy D15 seeks to ensure that development within conservation areas serves to 
preserve or enhance them and Policy D21 seeks to encourage good design. 

Emerging Policies 

4.9 Policy HE1 seeks to protect heritage assets and their setting and to identify opportunities 
for enhancement. Policy HE3 echoes the requirement of the Act in relation to listed 
buildings and Policy HE4 is similar in relation to conservation areas. 

Design 

4.10 The proposal brings a prominent area of wasteland within the conservation area back 
into use for the community. The environmental improvement scheme is welcomed in 
enhancing the gateway to North Scales village and uses nautical materials such as a viking 
ship sculpture, rope fencing and simple sandstone blocks to evoke the history of the village; 
the result should be an attractive space for residents and visitors. 

 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 103

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



Residential amenity 

4.11 The site has previously been used for boat storage with associated comings and 
goings. The nearest property at 6 North Scale is well screened from the site by a boundary 
wall and planting along its western boundary. Its southern wall is approximately 16m from 
the nearest part of the site and 34m from the proposed seating area which is proposed to 
be located to the south of the site. As such, any impact on residential amenity is considered 
to be modest. A representation has been received regarding potential obscured sight-lines 
when exiting their driveway but this would not be the case given the sculpture is to be set 
back within the site to the east. The Highway Authority have been consulted and raised no 
objection. 

Impact on heritage assets 

4.12 The site falls within the North Scale Conservation Area; as such there is a general duty 
under Section 72 of the Act to ensure that development serves to "preserve or enhance". 
Given the current appearance of the site there is little doubt that the proposals will enhance 
the conservation area and its setting offering a potentially attractive space on the entrance 
to North Scale. The proposals also satisfy the requirements of Section 66 of the Act in 
relation to listed buildings and their setting. In addition, the interpretive plaques also allow 
the history of the area to be greater appreciated and this is supported by the NPPF. 

Bio-diversity 

4.13 Natural England have raised no objection to the proposals and a likely significant effect 
on European sites can be ruled out under the Habitats Regulations. There are no 
landscape features within the site such as ponds or dry stone walls which could be retained 
or enhanced or which would provide a habitat for protected species. The provision of 
publicly accessible   green infrastructure with the potential for additional planting over time 
is welcomed. The provision of a bird box can be required by condition to ensure further bio-
diversity enhancement. 

5.Conclusions 

5.1 The site has long been identified as having potential as an environmental improvement 
scheme and the proposals are welcomed in improving the appearance of the entrance to 
North Scale and the setting of the conservation area and nearby heritage assets. Any 
impact on residential amenity is viewed as modest and the proposals are supported by the 
NPPF and the requirements of the Act in relation to heritage assets and their setting, 
namely Sections 66 and 72. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 103

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 1.2.2019 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this consent: 

Plan 1-Proposed Layout Ref NS/DB/003 
Proposed Paving Details Ref NS/DB/005 and 006 
Proposed Fencing Rope Ref NS/DB/007 
Proposed Fencing Post Ref NS/DB/008 
Sample plaque Ref NS/DB/009 
Proposed sandstone plinth Ref NS/DB/010, 011 and 012 
Proposed longboat sculpture feature Ref NS/DB/014 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority in the interests of the appearance of the development and the 
character of North Scale Conservation Area. 

Before Occupation 
 
2. Prior to the beneficial use of the site a bird box shall be erected on the site. The bird box 
should be erected out of reach of predators, at a height above ground level of between 1.5 
to 5 metres and directed to avoid direct sunlight, heavy rain and prevailing winds. The 
platform and box shall be installed and maintained in perpetuity. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of bio-diversity enhancement as required by Chapter 15 of the NPPF. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18 of 103

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



Informative 
 
1. Bird boxes: 

Fixing the boxes depends on the species the box is intended for. There is a wealth of 
guidance available from the British Trust for Ornithology, The Royal Society for Protection 
of Birds, the Barn Owl Trust and the Swift Conservation Trust. Boxes must be sited in 
accordance with the guidelines set out by these organisations. Weblinks are given below: 
RSPB website: 
http://www.rspb.org.uk/makeahomeforwildlife/advice/helpingbirds/nestboxes/ 
C de Feu (2005). Nestboxes. BTO 
http://www.bto.org/sites/default/files/u15/downloads/publications/guides/nestbox.pdf 
Swift Conservation Trust Choosing & Installing Swift Nest Boxes & Bricks https://swift-
conservation.org/Installing%20Swift%20Nest%20Boxes%202013%20(small).pdf 

2. Emergency Planning: 

The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of the 
BAE site. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for 
Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements for residents/business premises in 
this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the 
appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site. The applicant is advised to 
liaise with the County Council Emergency Planning office to allow for further discussion of 
available information: Senior Emergency Planning Officer, Resilience Unit, Cumbria County 
Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA. 

3. PROW: 

The applicant is advised that a Public Right of Way (PROW Number 601036) lies adjacent 
to the site. The applicant must ensure that no obstruction to the footpath occurs during or 
after completion of the site works. 

4.ENVIRONMENTAL PERMIT: - advice to applicant from Environment Agency 
 
The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a permit to 
be obtained for any activities which will take place: 
 
On or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal); 
On or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culvert (16 metres if tidal); 
On or within 16 metres of a sea defence; 
Involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood defence 
(including a remote defence) or culvert; 
In a floodplain more than 8 metres from the river bank, culvert or flood defence structure 
(16 metres if it’s a tidal main river) and you don’t already have planning permission. 

 

 

Page 19 of 103

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

For further guidance please visit https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits or contact our National Customer Contact Centre on 03702 422 549.  

The applicant should not assume that a permit will automatically be forthcoming once 
planning permission has been granted, and you are advised to liaise with the Environment 
Agency at the earliest opportunity. 

   

  

  

  

Page 20 of 103

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



Page 21 of 103

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



Page 22 of 103

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



Page 23 of 103

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 8



B21/2019/0009 
Planning Committee 

16
th
 April 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B21/2019/0009 Date Valid :10/01/2019 

Address : 79 Romney Park Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA15 8BN 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Erection of a two storey side extension to provide a larger kitchen, utility and 
cloak room to ground floor along with an en suite bedroom to first floor. 

Ward : Dalton South Ward 
Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : Mr J Durkin   Agent : Mr N Tyson   

Statutory Date : 07/03/2019 
Recommendation : Refused for the 
reasons stated 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-127 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B17 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H16 - Loss of 

sunlight or daylight 

 

Page 24 of 103

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue relates to the potential impact of the extension upon the existing residential 
amenities of the neighbouring property. 

Non Material Considerations 

N/A 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Romney Park 75, 77, 81, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 0 1 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 11/01/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals.” 

 
Dalton With Newton Town Council  07/02/2019  

"The Town Council have no objections." 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

  

 
 

Page 25 of 103

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The semi-detached house sits close to the junction of Romney Park and St. Helens Rd. 
It is the last property of this type, the closest neighbour being one of a small section of 3 
bungalows that step down the hill in a northerly direction  eventually leading to Thwaite Flat; 
the neighbouring bungalow is therefore sited on lower ground.  Off-road parking is provided 
via the front driveway and lay-by area, though the rear garage appears inaccessible to 
vehicles due to the presence of a side kitchen extension.  To the rear is Hagg Ghyll Wood. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Erection of a two storey side extension to provide a larger kitchen, utility and cloak room to 
ground floor, along with an en suite bedroom to first floor. 

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 1979/0149 81 Romney Park, Barrow-in-Furness Kitchen extension Approved 11/04/1979 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application is being reported to Members due to a request from the 
Chair giving concerns that it may be un-neighbourly development due to the potential to be 
unduly overbearing. The side of the neighbouring bungalow features a bedroom window 
which is the only window into that room. 

4.2 The application has been amended since submission to try and overcome concern 
regarding daylight loss.  The original submission, from a purely design perspective, did in fact 
comply with the applicable design policies (B17, DS5), featuring a matching pitch hipped roof, 
a 0.5m set back to provide a subordinate appearance and matching materials.  Furthermore, 
the loss of the ground floor side kitchen window improved existing privacy levels.  The 
location is such that it is not as visible from the wider street-scene as the majority of other 
dwellings given the fork of Romney Road and St Helens Rd; views are more distant as a 
result from the main road.  However, whilst being to an acceptable standard visually, it was at 
the cost of existing daylight levels experienced by the neighbouring bungalow, no. 81 
Romney Park, in addition to an increased sense of enclosure/overbearing for a side bedroom 
window. 

Daylight/Sunlight  

4.3 There are recognised tests available to assess the impact on sunlight and daylight levels 
arising from constructing in close proximity to other buildings. The Building Research 
Establishment (BRE) test typically used to assess diffuse daylight consists, in the first 
instance, of a 25 degree line plotted from the window likely to be affected.  The existing 
arrangement demonstrates that the test already fails as the existing height of the applicants 
house intersects the plotted line near the eaves.  As such it follows that the proposed 
arrangement will also fail, as it is encroaching closer to the assessed window.  A simplistic 
view is that as the test is already failed, no further harm can result from the development as it 

Page 26 of 103

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



is already compromised.  However, there are varying degrees of harm, and the increased 
separation at present will allow for more diffuse skylight to enter the bedroom window than 
will be possible after the extension.  Furthermore, the building of a two storey wall only 2.4m 
from the window will increase the sense of enclosure and overbearing significantly to this 
room, particularly as it doesn't benefit from any additional lighting/outlook.  If the 25 degree 
test is failed a more detailed assessment can be carried out, typically by qualified surveyors, 
to establish the resultant levels and amount of change. 

4.4 To this end, a daylight assessment has been carried out and submitted by the agent, 
though not prepared by a professional surveyor.  This concludes that the original design 
did fail from a daylight perspective as the assessed Vertical Sky Component (VSC) would be 
less than 27% (an accepted good level) and is also less than 80% of its former value.  The 
BRE guidance states such a reduction will be noticeable to the occupants and more of the 
room will appear poorly lit.  It would therefore have been considered contrary to Emerging 
Policy H16, which whilst not fully adopted yet, does attract considerable weight due to the 
advanced stage of preparation of the plan.  As such, an amended design has been submitted 
which claims to reduce the daylight loss sufficiently to provide an acceptable amount of 
daylight.   

4.5 Sunlight does not represent a significant issue on either scheme as the indicators suggest 
that the recommended minimum of 3 hours will still be received once the sun tracks past the 
applicants property (as extended), with the lower garage not providing the same degree of 
shading. 

Amended design and outlook 

4.6 The revised design is somewhat awkward, with a reduced eaves height below the existing 
level and an intricate hip and pitched roof arrangement to facilitate front and rear 
dormer windows to provide additional usable space, given the aforementioned reduction in 
height.  However, with the fairly low prominence within the street-scene and the presence of 
a bungalow to the north, the design does not result in significant harm and also results in a 
more gradual transition down in height.  Again, purely from a design perspective the proposal 
could be supported.  The daylight assessment claims this design results in an acceptable 
VSC; whilst less than the 27% standard, the reduction is less with 81.5% of the current level 
retained.  However, the same concern persists with regard to the overbearing nature.  Whilst 
the eaves height is reduced, the limited, potentially oppressive, outlook remains as the side 
wall of the extension still provides a substantial massing close to the boundary/window.  The 
original objection received has in fact been removed following the amendment, though 
mention is made of still not being happy with the proposal - any revision would still need to 
satisfy local and national policy however. 

4.7 Outlook relates to the visual dominance of an extension that results in an overbearing and 
oppressive sense of enclosure to an adjacent property. This can be from a habitable room 
window or a garden area and can occur even if there is no loss of sunlight, daylight or 
privacy, although often one or more of these factors will also be affected.  Whilst a sense of 
enclosure may already be present from facing the side of a larger property, there is an 
existing gap of near 6m from the two storey element (above the kitchen extension).  The 
occupier of 81 has confirmed the window is the only one serving the room though I have not 
been inside of the property.  Side windows are often secondary in nature, but are usually 
avoided in rows of houses/pairs of semis as they provide only limited benefit and are difficult 

Page 27 of 103

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



to protect in terms of privacy and lighting.  However, bungalows generally do rely more on 
side windows due to the internal layout; the arrangement of a semi-detached house next to a 
bungalow in a row is not overly common.  

Impact 

4.8 In considering whether the proposed harm is significantly worse than the existing, a local 
appeal decision (APP/W0910/D/15/3130451 - 24 South Row, Barrow) has been considered.  
The circumstances are slightly different - the window 'at risk' in that case was a kitchen 
window (not habitable in its own right), with the room having a secondary window for outlook 
and light.  The separation distance between the window and the proposed extension was 
also more than that proposed here, at 3m.  The Inspector commented,  

"I saw on my site visit that the outlook and light to the side kitchen window, is already 
restricted by the side boundary wall/fence. I consider that the proposed extension, having 
regard to the above separation distance and its projection of approximately 4.9 metres from 
the rear wall of the appeal property, would reduce a further segment of sky and increase the 
feeling of enclosure resulting in a significant impact on the outlook from the kitchen window of 
No. 26." 

4.9 Parallels can be drawn in the sense of an unacceptable level of enclosure and one which 
could be argued to be more severe in this instance as the room concerned doesn't have a 
secondary window.  The reduced height of the extension, a little over 2m from the bedroom 
window, is still 4.5m high - at this short distance it is considered the height will be 
unacceptably enclosing to the detriment of the residential amenity currently enjoyed. 

4.10 Turning back to the daylight assessment concerning the revised design, whilst it 
concludes that the VSC is acceptable, it is very close to the margins of acceptability within 
the BRE guidance.  Upon closer inspection, it is also difficult to conclude the assessment has 
been carried out in strict accordance with the procedures within that guidance.  
Following discussions  with a legal consultant specialising in such light issues, it is advised 
that the submission does falls short of the expected format, in that it does not adequately 
explain the findings, and it does not seem to include any consideration of sunlight to 
window(s), daylight distribution in the affected room, or overshadowing of the garden.  Whilst 
some of these are not factors raised by the Council, it does demonstrate that the typical 
assessment procedures have not been followed.  It is also questionable as to whether 
the figures provided are correct – the drawn diagram included a view out of the neighbour’s 
window, and does not appear to be a Waldram Diagram (this being the appropriate 
methodology) Officers have been advised that this type of assessment by hand is an involved 
process – it is one which is now almost exclusively done with computer software.  For such 
evidence to be given sufficient weight to rely upon it, there must be confidence that it is 
accurate and correct otherwise any decision could well be subject to challenge.  

 

 

 

Page 28 of 103

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



5. Conclusions 

5.1 It is accepted that the original scheme submitted resulted in an unacceptable loss of 
daylight to the neighbouring property's bedroom window.  The revised design submitted 
attempts to overcome this though the submitted daylight assessment is not to a professional 
standard and cannot be relied upon to evidence acceptability.  That notwithstanding, the 
close proximity of the side wall provides a substantial massing less than 2.5m from the 
neighbouring bedroom window at no.81 Romney Park.  Combined with a reduction in sky 
light received, the impact this causes on amenity is considered to be significant and therefore 
contrary to local and national policy. 

6. Recommendation 
 
6.1 I recommend that Planning Permission be REFUSED for the following reasons : - 
 
Reason No.1 

 The development proposed is considered to result in the creation of an overbearing impact 

and unacceptable level of enclosure to a habitable room serving the neighbouring property 

(no.81). The proposal is therefore contrary to Emerging Policy H16 of the Local Plan 

(submission draft) and NPPF paragraph 127. 

 

Reason No.2 

The submitted Daylight Assessment does not appear to be in accordance with BRE guidance 

contained within the document 'Site Layout Planning For Daylight and Sunlight: A guide to 

good practice'. This does not therefore provide sufficient evidence that the effect on daylight 

reception to the neighbouring property, specifically the side bedroom window of no.81, is 

within the acceptable levels detailed in the BRE guidance; it is therefore considered contrary 

to Emerging Policy H16 of the Local Plan (submission draft) and NPPF paragraph 127. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  
 
  

  

  

Page 29 of 103

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



Page 30 of 103

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



Page 31 of 103

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 8



Page 32 of 103

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 8



Page 33 of 103

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 8



Page 34 of 103

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



Page 35 of 103

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 8



B07/2018/0817 
Planning Committee 

16th April 2019   

  

  
Application Number : B07/2018/0817 Date Valid :04/12/2018 

Address : Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Minor material amendment to allow a revised house type on plot 12 via a 
variation of condition no. 2 (approved plans) for planning permission B07/2016/0126 
(Erection of 13 dwellings) 

Ward : Dalton South Ward Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : Mr J Wood   Agent : Mr Tim Coldrick Neil Price Limited  

Statutory Date : 29/01/2019 Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-123 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-127 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B3 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H16 - Loss of 

sunlight or daylight 
5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H17 - Protection of 

Residential Privacy 

Page 36 of 103

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



Summary of Main Issues 

The principle of the development, including a house in this location and raised ground level, 
has previously been accepted.  The main issue to consider is whether the revised house 
type significantly alters the character of the development as approved or harms residential 
amenity for the dwellings closet to the proposal. 

Non Material Considerations 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Hollygate Road 3, 4, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 2 0 

The two objections made reference to the raising of the ground level and the potential for 
overlooking. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Highways Cumbria County Council (Highways) 19/12/2018  

"Thank you for the consultation on the above application. 

It is noted that the change of house type will reduce the size of the house (and number of 
bedrooms) and therefore this proposal will have an overall lower impact on the drainage 
and car parking requirement than the previously approved proposals. 

I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority have no objection to the proposal". 

 

 

Page 37 of 103

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 19/12/2018  

"Thank you for the consultation on the above application. 

It is noted that the change of house type will reduce the size of the house (and number of 
bedrooms) and therefore this proposal will have an overall lower impact on the drainage 
and car parking requirement than the previously approved proposals. 

I can therefore confirm that the Lead Local Flood Authority have no objection to the 
proposal". 

Dalton With Newton Town Council 20/12/2018  

"The Town Council would object to this application in the strongest possible terms. 

Plot 12 on Hayeswater Drive is located immediately to the rear of two existing bungalows 
on Hollygate Road, these bungalows are shown vaguely on the site plan but it is difficult to 
discern that they are actually properties. The house type proposed for plot 12 is being 
constructed in an elevated position, the sloping land having been banked up to 
accommodate a property, the footings for plot 12 are currently being installed on top of this 
bank which is now level with the top of the 6ft boundary fence in the rear garden of one of 
the existing bungalows. 

Given the fact that the existing properties are bungalows and the proposed property is a 
house being constructed in an elevated position and in close proximity, once completed the 
property on plot 12 will quite literally tower over the existing bungalows affording the new 
residents of Hayeswater Drive a clear view into the living area, bedrooms and bathroom 
window of the existing properties.  This is clearly going to be a complete and serious 
invasion of privacy for both properties on Hollygate Road. 

Despite the residents and Town Councillors searching the initial planning application for this 
development (B07/2016/0126) none of the parties can find any reference to the proposed 
elevation of the land to accommodate two properties on Hayeswater Drive (plots 11 & 12). 
The Town Council would question the integrity of the banking constructed to accommodate 
plot 12 of Hayeswater Drive, having received numerous complaints from local residents and 
motorists about debris from this banking falling or rolling down the slope and landing in the 
highway onto a poorly lit, dangerous blind bend on Hollygate Road. The Health and Safety 
Executive obviously shared these concerns about debris as we understand Hollygate Road 
was shut to through traffic whilst the safety issue was dealt with, despite this, debris still 
continues to leave the site and land on the highway with alarming frequency. 

In summary the Town Council would request that the planning committee be asked to 
conduct a site visit at Hayeswater Drive and the existing bungalows on Hollygate Road to 
view the effect it will have on their privacy. It would also be helpful for the committee to look 
at the banking that has been constructed from Hollygate Road". 

 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
 

Page 38 of 103

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The development consists of 13 houses which are currently being built on the site of a 
former builders merchants/yard, located at the top of Dalton Cemetery Hill. The railway 
tracks run through a tunnel to the north of the site, whilst a pair of semi-detached 
bungalows (Hollygate Road) are the closest dwellings to the subject of the application.  The 
ground levels within this part of the application have been raised as approved, but continue 
to fall beyond this on the western edge of the site, down to Hollygate Road. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Minor material amendment to allow a revised house type on plot 12 via a variation of 
condition no. 2 (approved plans) for planning permission B07/2016/0126 (Erection of 13 
dwellings) 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 42/2005/1156 New Housing site at Builders Yard Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria Residential development for the erection of 20 dwellings Condition Precedent 
15/10/2007 
 
3.2 B07/2016/0126 Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Residential 
Development of 14 Dwellings APPCOND 13/06/2017 
 
3.3 B07/2018/0407 Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application to vary 
conditions 2 & 15 of planning permission B07/2016/0126 (development of 13 dwellings) to 
allow for revised drainage layout APPCOND 19/06/2018 
 
3.4 B28/2008/0452 Cemetery Hill Site Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Submission 
of ground investigation report as required by Condition No. 2 of Planning Permission 
05/1156 DISPOSED 21-SEP-2011 
 
3.5 B28/2009/0803 New Housing site at Builders Yard Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria Submission of 'access road' details on phase 1 of development as required by 
condition no. 5 of planning permission 2005/1156. DISPOSED 21-SEP-2011 
 
3.6 B28/2017/0435 Street Record Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application 
for approval of details reserved by Condition No.3 (Site Investigation), No.4 (Remediation 
Scheme), No.5 (Construction Method Statement), No.6 (Tree Protection Plan) and No.9 
(Methodology for import of materials) for planning permission B07/2016/0126 (Residential 
Development of 13 dwellings) APPCOND 30/08/2017 
 
3.7 B28/2018/0037 Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Discharge 
of conditions No 11 (Highway construction details), No. 13 (Landscaping Scheme), No. 14 
(Exceedance Route Measures) and No. 15 (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Details and 
Phasing0 for planning permission B07/2016/0126 Residential Development of 13 Dwellings 
APPCOND 26/09/2018 

Page 39 of 103

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The principle of the residential development has already been accepted - the application 
concerns only the considerations arising from a house type substitution on a single plot.  
The main alteration with the new house type include the omission of the garage to the side 
of the dwelling, a smaller footprint (reducing from the approved 94m² to 65m²) and a lower 
ridge height (8.3m down to 7.1m).  The change does bring the upper gable wall closer to 
the western boundary than before, given the original design included a garage to this side 
elevation.  The reasoning for this however is to reduce the encroachment onto the sloping 
ground, which falls away to the east, by reducing the footprint.  The amendment also 
improves the outlook from within the property by pulling it further away from the side 
elevation of plot 11.  The sole window in the west facing side elevation serves an upstairs 
bathroom, preventing any reduction in privacy or overlooking as this is a non habitable 
room.  For the avoidance of doubt a condition requiring the window to be fitted with obscure 
glazing has been added.  

4.2 Parking will be accommodated in the front curtilage as before, but with provision now for 
two vehicles.  The location in the corner of the site and the addition of only one extra car 
should prevent any significant 'cluttering' above the existing parking levels - not all plots 
have garages so it is quite common for front curtilage parking.  The appearance of the 
dwelling remain consistent with the wider site.    

4.3 In considering whether these alterations impact on the amenity of existing dwellings 
(Hollygate Rd), in line with Saved Policy B3 (principle aside, the applicable criterion 
requires development to be sensitive to its local environment) and emerging Policy H16 any 
potential for a loss of sunlight and daylight), the main considerations relate to the altered 
footprint and the reduction in height as these are the aspects that could result in change.  
Whilst the house itself is no closer than before, the upper section of the first floor is, (given 
the omission of the side garage), and has the potential to affect daylight.  Applying the 25 
degree test from the BRE guidance, this shows a very small breach from the peak of the 
upper gable.  However, as this is an apex roof, and the dwelling runs at an angle, the 
amount of daylight actually blocked will be minimal.  Furthermore when compared to the 
original dwelling, which already has permission, it itself also had a similar impact.  The 
reduction in ridge height effectively mitigates against bringing the upper floor closer to the 
boundary and prevents any additional loss of daylight over the existing approval.  The 
separation distance of nearly 14m also minimises the sense of enclosure, and is not 
significantly different to that already approved. The NPPF addresses the issue at paragraph 
123, stating, "...authorities should take a flexible approach in applying policies or guidance 
relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would otherwise inhibit making efficient use of 
a site (as long as the resulting scheme would provide acceptable living standards)."  It has 
also been shown that no significant impact on amenity results from the dwelling at that 
height so would therefore accord with national policy. 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 103

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



 

4.4 One point consistent in the objections relates to the ground levels, as the site has been 
previously raised to provide a fairly even level throughout, for ease of construction. Dalton 
Town Council make reference that it is not clear in the original approval what the ground 
levels would be.  Having examined the previous application however, it is shown on 
approved plans that the finished floor level of this particular plot is '58.4'.  This is also 
maintained in the amendment submitted in 2018.  The current site plan doesn't propose to 
amend the ground level, merely the house type - for the avoidance of doubt confirmation 
was received from the agent that the finished floor level of the property remains at 58.4.  
Whether the ground level is considered to be too high is effectively academic, as 
permission already exists to build a house at that level.    

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposed house type substitution does not result in any material change to the 
residential amenities of the nearest residential properties and suggests a better standard of 
living accommodation for the future occupants of the dwelling.  The external design of the 
dwelling is in keeping with the character of the wider estate.  The proposed ground level 
remains unchanged from that previously approved hence there is no greater adverse 
impact upon existing neighbouring properties than has already been agreed. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 
 
1. Not reimposed 
 
Reason 
 
The application is an amendment to a scheme already commenced. 
 
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the application dated 27th 
January 2016 as amended (reduced to 13 dwellings) and the hereby approved plans Site 
layout Plan Ref 3296-P102 Rev G, Plans and Elevations P103A, 104A, 105A, 106A & 
111A, Proposed Road layout Ref 16165/01.1E, Proposed Road levels 01.2B, Carriageway 
Longitudinal Section 01.3A, Construction details 1 of 2 04.1C, Construction details 2 of 2 
04.2 Road Improvements 01.5B, Drainage Layout 02.1M, Percolation Test Locations 02.2A, 
Highway Soakaway Detail 02.4F, Exceedance Route 02.5E, Surface Water Drainage 
Strategy Rev C dated 27/04/2017, except where amended by any of the conditions below. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 103

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



3. The site shall be remediated in accordance with : 
 
Remediation Method Statement ref BEK-15140-4, bEk Enviro Ltd July 2017 
Asbestos Management Plan ref BEK -15140-3, bEk Enviro Ltd June 2017 
 
Reason 
 
To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential hazards that may 
arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the land. 
 
4. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction 
Method Statement ref AM1. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the construction phase is carried out having full regard to amenity, safety 
and environmental considerations. 
 
5. Tree protection fencing which defines the root protection areas shall be maintained in the 
positions shown on 'Site Set Up Plan' ref P102 HS1 and of the type specified by the 
Arboriculturalists Report dated 14/04/2016 which accompanied the original application. No 
excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, temporary buildings used in 
connection with the development or areas for the deposit of soil or waste or for storage of 
construction materials, equipment or fuel shall be sited within the fenced areas /root 
protection area of any tree. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during building or engineering 
operations. The issue has to be addressed pre-commencement as it relates to measures to 
protect trees during the construction phase. 
 
6. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification Report 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the occupation 
of any part of the development or in accordance with a scheme of phase submitted to be 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 

Reason 
 
To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential hazards that may 
arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the land. 

7. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the 
Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be halted and Field 
Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Planning Authority, remediation 
and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation of the development. 

Page 42 of 103

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 
 
To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential hazards that may 
arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the land. 
 
8. Only soil tested as defined by the Remediation Statement ref BEK-15140-4 bEk, Enviro 
Ltd dated July 2017 shall be imported to the site for the purposes of landscaping. 
 
Reason 
 
To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential hazards that may 
arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the land. 
 
9. No dwellings shall be occupied (unless in accordance with a scheme of phasing 
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority) until the estate 
road, including footways, has been constructed in all respects to base course level, and 
street lighting has been provided and brought into full operational use in accordance with 
details approved under condition 11 below, including any scheme of phasing. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and vehicles associated with the 
development. 
 
10. Prior to the beneficial occupation of plot 12 the bathroom window in the southwest 
facing side elevation must be permanently fitted with manufacturers obscure glazing of an 
obscurity rating of no less than level 4 from the Pilkington glass range (or an equivalent 
range and rating subject to prior agreement with the Planning Authority) and thereafter 
retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties from overlooking or 
perceived overlooking. 
 
11. The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be designed, constructed, drained and lit 
to an adoptable standard, including the widening of the existing section of Hayeswater 
Drive, in accordance with the following approved plans: 
 
Proposed road layout 16165/01.1 rev J 
Proposed carriageway levels 18165/01.2 Rev C 
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 16165/01.3 Rev A 
Typical Construction Details sheet 1 of 2 ref 16165/01.4.1 rev E 
Typical Construction Details (Sheet 2 of 2) 16165/01.4.2 Rev A 
Road Improvements 16165/01.5 rev F 
Adoption Plan 16165/01.6 rev G 
Percolation Test Locations 16165/02.2 Rev A 
Typical Roof and Driveway Drainage Layout 16165/02.3 

Page 43 of 103

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



Highway Soakaway Detail 16165/02.4 Rev F 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and vehicles associated with the 
development. 
 
12. Prior to the occupation of the 8th dwelling a programme for the completion of the estate 
roads including footways and the widening of the existing section of Hayeswater Drive 
where shown on the Site layout Plan ref 3296-P102G shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority and the estate roads shall then be completed 
in accordance with the approved programme and the details approved under condition 10 
above. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and vehicles associated with the 
development. 
 
13. The landscaping scheme for the site shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details referenced below, and all planting and subsequent maintenance shall be 
to current British Standards. 
 
Landscape proposals c-1563-01 Rev B 
Fence detail (1) P109 rev A 
Fence detail (2) ref P110 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
14. The exceedance route measures and installation shall be carried out in accordance with 
plan ref: 'Exceedance Route 16165/02.5 rev E'. 
 
Reason 
 
To address any risk of flood in excess of a 1 in 100 year storm event. 
 
15. Foul and surface water drainage shall be constructed in accordance with approved 
Surface Water Drainage Strategy CN 16165Rev C dated 27/04/2017 and the following 
plans: 
 
Percolation Test Locations 16165/02.2 Rev A 
Typical Roof and Driveway Drainage Layout 16165/02.3 
Highway Soakaway Detail 16165/02.4 Rev F 
Drainage layout ref 16165/02.1 rev M 
SW Manhole details (3) 16165/02.6.3 
SW Manhole Details (2) 16165/02.6.2 
SW Manhole Details (1) 16165/02.6.1 Rev A 25/06/17 
Foul Drainage Manhole Details 16165/02.7 Rev D 

Page 44 of 103

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



 
 

Reason 
 
To ensure the site is adequately drained 
 
16. A footpath link shall be provided to link the approved estate road with Hollygate Road 
as shown on ‘Site Layout Plan ref 3296-P102G’ and in accordance with further details of 
surfacing, lighting, levels, fencing ,drainage and a programme for its delivery and which 
shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority prior to the 
occupation of the 8th dwelling and including for this purpose any dwelling on plots 11 and 
12. 
 
Reason 
 
To accord with saved policy E17 which seeks to ensure where feasible that development 
schemes contribute to an improvement in conditions for pedestrians and policy DS2 of 
emerging plan. 
 
 
Informative 
  

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

_________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

Page 45 of 103

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



2018/0817

Page 46 of 103

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 8



4

9

1

2

5

3

6

7

8

13

12

H

a

y

e

s

w

a

t
e

r
 
D

r
i
v

e

C

e

m

e

t
e

r
y

 
H

i
l
l

H

o

l

l

y

g

a

t

e

 

R

o

a

d

2

.
4

 
x

 
7

0

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

Existing access

tarmac

2

.
4

 
x

 
4

5

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

Brick wall to

rear garden

plot 14

tarmac

pavers

tarmac

5

0

0

4

8

0

0

R

1

2

5

0

0

2

.
4

 
x

 
7

0

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

Brick wall

continuation

of existing

2

.
4

 
x

 
4

5

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

12B

Speed table

s

l
i
d

i
n

g

 
d

o

o

r
s

pavers

Rear gardens to

plots 10 & 11 with

1.8m timber fence

pavers

s

l
i
d

i
n

g

 
d

o

o

r
s

pavers

pavers

pavers

pavers

4

8

0

0

1.8
m

 ti
m

ber f
ence

tarmac

R

1

2

5

0

0

1.8m timber

fence between

rear gardens

2

0

0

0

2

4

0

0

0

3C

13B

1U

15U

14U

17U

4C

2U

16U

G5C

G18U

9C

10

11B

6U

G10C

11

7B

G8C

garden P9

pavers

(extra parking P9)

Existing trees note

subject to TPO

Rear gardens to plot 12 with

1.8m timber fence - terracing

to garden at lower level

2

0

0

0

4

8

0

0

5

0

0

Area of land outside

applicants ownership

adjoing existing footway

Existing footway

Wall returns at end of footway

Footpath link to Holygate Road

- full details to be agreed with

Cumbria Highways including

access onto Hollygate Road

Refuge

collection

point 1

Refuge

collection

point 2

pavers

4

8

0

0

6

3

3

6

6

3

1

8

4

8

0

0

footpath

footpath

l

i

n

e

 

o

f

 

p

r

e

v

i

o

u

s

l

y

a

p

p

r

o

v

e

d

 

d

w

e

l

l

i

n

g

1

.

8

m

 

t

i

m

b

e

r

 

f

e

n

c

e

 

i

n

s

i

d

e

 

o

f

 

e

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

f

e

n

c

e

 

a

t

 

f

i

n

i

s

h

e

d

 

g

r

o

u

n

d

 

l

e

v

e

l

Sheet Revision

Drawn

Title

Project

NEIL PRICE LIMITED

No. Date

Checked Date

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Neil Price Ltd and must not be copied

or reproduced, either directly or indirectly without the consent of the company.

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this

drawing - All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions

only.

All heights, levels, sizes and dimensions to be checked on site and any

discrepancies be notified prior to any manufacture or commencement of works.

Project Ref Scale

Revision

A1

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

HAYESWATER DRIVE

DALTON-IN-FURNESS

SITE LAYOUT PLAN

3296-P102

1:250 @ A1 / 1:500 @ A33296

21st December 2015TC

PLANNING

0

1 : 250

2.5 5 7.5 10 12.5

METRES

PLOT SCHEDULE

PLOT No TYPE DESCRIPTION

INTERNAL

FLOOR

AREA (sqft)

QUANT.

1, 4, 10 & 11
TYPE 1 DETACHED 4 BED WITH INTEGRAL GARAGE 1416

4

2 & 3 TYPE 2

DETACHED 3 BED 1068 2

5 & 8 TYPE 2A

SEMI-DETACHED 3 BED 1151 2

6 & 7 TYPE 3 SEMI-DETACHED 4 BED WITH INTEGRAL STORE 1382 2

9 TYPE 4

DETACHED 4 BED WITH ATTACHED GARAGE 1130 1

13 TYPE 4A

DETACHED 4 BED 1171 1

12 TYPE 6

DETACHED 3 BED 1136 1

TOTAL UNITS:

13

MATERIALS

ROOFS

Grey concrete roofing tiles

WALLS

White wet dash render

Smooth grey rendered plinth below DPC

Precast concrete quoins, heads and cills

WINDOWS

White uPVC double glazed units.

DOORS

White uPVC units to match windows

RAINWATER GOODS

Black uPVC gutters and downpipes.

FASCIAS, BARGEBOARDS AND SOFFITS

White uPVC

HARDSTANDING

Block or tarmac pavers to roads

Block pavers to drives

Concrete pavers to paths and patios

WALLS AND FENCES

Brick faced walls

Vertically boarded timber fences

G

A 05/05/16 Tree survey added

B 02/08/16 Plots reduced from 14 to 13, TPO trees added

C 28/09/16 Service strip updated

D 27/03/17 Footpath link added

E 12/05/17 Hayeswater drive widened to 4.8m

F 12/10/18 Plot 12 Revised

G 19/02/19 Plot 12 fencing updated

2018/0817

Page 47 of 103

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



2018/0817

Page 48 of 103

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



B12/2019/0150 
Planning Committee 

16
th
 April 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B12/2019/0150 Date Valid :20/02/2019 

Address : Salthouse Mills Industrial Estate, 
Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Erection of enclosure fence to boundary with vehicular and pedestrian access 
gates. Fence to be 2.4 metres high v-mesh type powder coat finished in green with gates to 
match. 

Ward : Roosecote Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant :  Hiltongrove Ltd  Agent : Mr Steve Meyer, Craig and Meyer  

Statutory Date : 22/05/2019 
Recommendation : Permission be Granted 
with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy G14 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is the visual appearance of the fence and the potential impact upon any public 
rights of way. 

Non Material Considerations 

  

Page 49 of 103

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site and press notices. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Salthouse Road 93, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 1 1 

 A representation was initially received in relation to the original proposal based on concerns 
about access for cyclists and walkers to the Westfield Trail from Salthouse Road to Rampside 
however the amended proposals overcome this concern.  

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Natural England 
Network Rail 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 22/02/2019  

"Our response is the following: 

There are no objections to the proposed development but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the potential inundation area for Harlock and Poaka Beck 
Reservoirs. These Reservoirs falls under the Water Framework Directive and has a prepared 
off site emergency planning. Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the 
application being approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further 
discussion of available information. 

Spirit Energy is covered by the provision of the COMAH 2015 Regulations. There are no 
objections to the proposed development but it should be noted that the proposed development 
is situated within the Public Information Zone of the site and in liaison with the site operator and 
in liaison with the HSE special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this 
area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action 
to take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Page 50 of 103

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 21/02/2019 (original proposal)  

"The proposal development associated with the application includes the installation of two new 
gates across a recorded public footpath which is numbered 601006 which would be unlawful by 
virtue of Section 147 of the Highways Act 1980 as they would not be needed for controlling the 
ingress and egress of livestock. Therefore, the proposed development is not acceptable to 
Cumbria County Council as the highway authority for Cumbria." 

(Plan attached - see Appendix A) 

Cumbria County Council (PROW) 15/03/2019 (revised proposal)  

"I am satisfied that the proposed security fencing, as indicated on the amended fencing plan 
6229/02C, would not interfere with public footpath No.601006 and I therefore have no concerns 
about it." 

 Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 26/02/2019 

"The Environment Agency have no objection to the proposed development as submitted." 

Natural England 14/03/2019  

"Thanks for consulting Natural England on the application below. 

The site is adjacent to Cavendish Dock which is part of the South Walney & Piel Channel Flats 
SSSI and Morecambe Bay & Duddon Estuary SPA. Due to the temporary nature of the 
construction of the fencing there is unlikely to be any significant effects on the qualifying bird 
species of these sites." 

Network Rail  25/02/2019 (original proposal) 

"Network Rail has the following comments on the above proposal. 

Attached is a plan showing Network Rail land shaded in green, with an access in brown. 

The erection of the fencing could prevent Network Rail from accessing its land and the existing 
operational railway. 

The applicant/agent details have been redacted so there is no way to contact the applicant / 
agent to discuss this proposal. 

Network Rail requires access to its land and infrastructure around the clock, 24/7, 365 including 
vehicles, plant, machinery, and emergency services. 

The land is subject to a demarcation agreement DA3004/RT – therefore in addition to any 
planning consent the applicant will need to secure agreement to the works from Network Rail. 

Page 51 of 103

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



They must abide by the terms and conditions and covenants within the agreement. 

The applicant will submit details to: (details redacted by officer)." 

 
Network Rail  12/03/2019 (revised proposal)  

"The holding objection is withdrawn as the proposed gate location now excludes the Network 
Rail access. 

The land is subject to a demarcation agreement DA3004/RT – therefore in addition to any 
planning consent the applicant will need to secure agreement to the works from Network Rail. 
They must abide by the terms and conditions and covenants within the agreement. 

The applicant will submit details to: (redacted) 

No works are to commence on site until agreed with Network Rail." 

 -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 This application relates to a large area of land encompassing the former Salthouse Mills site. 
The site is accessed under the railway bridge to the south of Salthouse Road and forms a 
roughly rectangular area between the railway line to its northern boundary , the sewage 
treatment works to the south and the docks to the west.The site is predominantly flat with some 
raised banking towards the southern boundary and it lacks any planting of note being mainly 
self-sown scrub. The buildings to the northern boundary are currently in use as workshops with 
the two blocks to the south and east of these vacant and in poor condition. Beyond this to the 
south is a hard surfaced oval area which is the remains of a former stock car racing track. 
Whilst not listed the site is of interest as part of Barrow's industrial heritage. 

1.2 A public right of way (PR601006) runs along the northern boundary of the site continuing in 
a south eastern direction towards the treatment works. In addition, there is a path to the western 
boundary of the site which runs parallel to the waterfront. 

1.3 The site is identified as an "Opportunity Area" in the Submission Draft Plan being a 
brownfield, predominantly vacant site within the urban boundaries. It was allocated as a housing 
site in the Barrow Port Area Action Plan however, the previous owner/ developer was not able 
to resolve access issues. The Local Plan notes that the site requires remediation and 
regeneration, and is suitable for a range of uses. Policy DS4 suggests that it has suitability 
for  a mix of housing, employment, culture,  leisure, open space and tourism development, that 
should be sensitive to its location and surrounding land uses, with the objective of regenerating 
the area. 

 

Page 52 of 103

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The site has a history of antisocial activity due to its isolation, including fly tipping, 
unauthorised use relating to motorcycle scrambling, and the depositing of stolen vehicles. The 
site has recently changed hands and the priority of the new owners is to make the site secure. 
The application relates to the erection of a fence to the boundaries with vehicular and 
pedestrian access gates. The fence is to be 2.4 metres high in a v-mesh type powder coated 
finish in green with gates to match. As originally submitted the fence encompassed the full 
extent of the applicant's ownership with gated access to the public right of way. Following 
objections, the agent has amended the proposed fence line to the north of the site, so that the 
existing rights of way (pedestrian and vehicular) fall outside of the fenced area, and therefore 
remain unrestricted. 

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 1974/0190 Roosecote - Sandgate Barrow-in-Furness Overhead 132kv Line Appcond 
02/07/1974 
 
3.2 1975/1152 Factory Building, Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness Use of existing factory as a 
metal plating plant Approved 02/03/1976 
 
3.3 1982/0250 B.E.C. Plant Ltd, Unit 40a, Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness Retention of 
existing temporary office facilities Appcond 15/04/1982 
 
3.4 1982/0819 Former Gatehouse, Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use of offices 
to domestic accommodation Approved 30/11/1982 
 
3.5 1986/0139 Cavalier Cabs, 1A Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from 
industry to a taxi office Approved 07/04/1986 
 
3.6 54/1993/0793 Furness Marksmen Salthouse Mills Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Rifle and 
pistol shooting range including portacabin and containers for storage and formation of perimeter 
bund using waste material from construction of sewage works Appcond 17/02/1994 
 
3.7 54/1994/0431 Salthouse Mills Salthouse Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Development of 
a short circuit motor racing track with associated access and parking facilities Appcond 
30/11/1994 
 
3.8 58/2003/0710 Roosecote Raceway Salthouse Mills Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0DH 
Variation of condition no. 4 of planning permission 1994/0431 to allow 5 evening meetings per 
year on Saturday evenings (6.00 p.m. to 11.00 p.m.) Refused 01/10/2003 
 
3.9 78/1992/0596 Salthouse Holder Station Salthouse Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Application for deemed consent for storage of low pressure gas in a single gas holder under the 
Planning Hazardous Substances Act 1990 Section II, Regulations 1992 Approved 20/10/1992 
 
3.10 85/1994/0691 Units 12 and 12D Salthouse Mills Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Lawful 

Page 53 of 103

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



Development Certificate for existing vehicle repair and dismatling business Approved 
06/03/1995 
 
3.11 94/1999/9017 Salthouse Pools Sewage Treatment Plant Rampside Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0PP Erection of a building to house sludge drying plant with associated 
odour control unit (County Matter) Appcond 10/01/2000 
 
3.12 94/2001/9002 Salthouse Mills Salthouse Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Change of use 
from a metal finishing shop (B2) to a mixed use as a waste transfer facility and vehicle 
dismantlers (County Matter) Appcond 24/07/2001 
 
3.13 B28/2012/9007 Land adjacent to Barrow WWTW, Salthouse Pool, Rampside Road Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria Resubmission of 6/07/9011 to allow amendment to red line boundary, 
alterations to site layput including low level ducting rising approximately 600mm above each 
tank, increase in height of odour control unit, new flume chamber, two lifting beams  Appcond 
20-JUL-2012 

4.  Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 The NPPF seeks to support sustainable development and encourage good design. Chapter 
12 focuses on achieving well designed places recognising "good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities." Additionally, public safety is mentioned a number of 
times in the Framework: Chapter 8 relates to promoting healthy and safe communities and 
paragraph 91 advises "planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive 
and safe places." 

Saved Policies 

4.2 There are no specific policies in relation to fences although Policy D21 seeks to encourage 
well designed places. 

Emerging Policies 

4.3 Policy DS5 echoes the ethos of the NPPF in seeking to encourage good design. 

4.4 The site has been the subject of anti-social behaviour for some time and the efforts of the 
present owner to secure the site are welcomed. The fence is of an open mesh style in a dark 
green colour and this should minimise its impact on the wider landscape. No objections have 
been received from Natural England in relation to potential impact on the adjacent SSSI. 

4.5 In relation to biodiversity, it is understood that smaller mammals may find the fence to be a 
barrier, and it is recommended that gaps of 100mm high be provided under the bottom of the 
fence, at intervals of 100m; this  will go some way to providing safe routes for smaller 
mammals  and can be adequately achieved by means of a condition.  

 

Page 54 of 103

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposal is welcomed in securing the site and in making it a safer environment. The 
open mesh design and dark green colour should help to minimise any impact and the proposal 
is considered to be acceptable in terms of national and local planning policy. 

6. Recommendation 
 
6.1 I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

  
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with the 
application dated as valid on 19.2.2019 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this consent: 
Proposed Enclosure/Security Fence Drawing No 6229/02 Revision C (amended plan received 
on 11.3.2019) 
Construction Environment Management Plan dated February 2019 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved by 
the Planning Authority. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
2. 100mm high gaps shall be provided under the bottom of the fence, at intervals of 100m and 
shall thereafter be so maintained. 
 
Reason 
 
To provide safe routes of access for smaller mammals in the interests of bio-diversity. 

 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please contact 
your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to how to 
proceed. 

Page 55 of 103

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



   

 Emergency Planning 
The applicant is advised that the proposed development is situated within the potential 
inundation area for Harlock and Poaka Beck Reservoirs. These Reservoirs fall under the 
Water Framework Directive  and have a prepared off site emergency plan. 
Spirit Energy is covered by the provision of the COMAH 2015 Regulations. It should be 
noted that the proposed development is situated within the Public Information Zone of 
the site and in liaison with the site operator and in liaison with the HSE special 
arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and particular 
attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the 
event of an incident at the site. 

 The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency Planning office to 
allow for further discussion of available information: Senior Emergency Planning Officer, 
Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, 
Penrith, Cumbria , CA10 2FA . 

   

 Network Rail 
 
The land is subject to a demarcation agreement DA3004/RT – therefore in addition to 
any planning consent the applicant will need to secure agreement to the works from 
Network Rail. They must abide by the terms and conditions and covenants within the 
agreement. 
 
The applicant is advised to submit details to: PropertyServicesLNW@networkrail.co.uk 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

   

  

  

  

Page 56 of 103

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



Page 57 of 103

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



Page 58 of 103

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0011 
Planning Committee 

16
th
 April 2019   

  

  

Application Number 
: B18/2019/0011 

Date Valid :07/01/2019 

Address : Low Peasholmes Farm, 
Peasholmes Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, 
Cumbria, LA13 0QB 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Erection of livestock building 

Ward : Roosecote Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr Michael Rawlinson, M 
& E Rawlinson  

Agent : Mr Michael Rawlinson, M & E 
Rawlinson  

Statutory Date : 04/03/2019 
Recommendation : Permission be 
Granted subject to conditions  

Barrow Planning Hub  

  

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D1 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 

Summary of Main Issues 

The key issue is the impact of the barn on the open countryside setting where stricter controls 
exist over development. 

Page 59 of 103

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



 

Non Material Considerations 

A telecommunications mast is located on the site which would need to be re-sited should the 
applicant wish to proceed to construction. This is a private matter between the farm owner 
and the telecomms company and not relevant to the determination of the application. 

Boundary disputes, covenants or other property rights issues  are not material planning 
considerations. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Arlington Business 
Park 

Vodafone 1330 The Exchange, 

Peasholmes Lane 
Granary Cottage, High Peasholmes Farm, Peapod Cottage, Snowdrop 
Cottage, The Stables, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 2 0 

  Two responses have been received on behalf of the  telecommunications company in 
relation to the following: 

-the existing base station is providing service coverage to a significant area which has 
material social and economic benefits; 

-the associated material benefits are significant and should be given significant weight; 

-approval would conflict with the NPPF in relation to telecommunications development; 

-approval would compromise the base station and the local benefit that it provides; 

-if the site was decommissioned it would be difficult to replace other than with a more visually 
damaging siting; 

-the mast is to be upgraded to 5G in the near future; 

-the land use with greatest public benefit is the base station rather than the livestock building 

 

Page 60 of 103

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Natural England 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

  
 Cumbria County Council (Highways & LLFA) 29/01/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation on 09/01/2019 regarding the above Planning Application. 

Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

It is considered that the proposal will not have a material affect on existing highway 
conditions.  I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the 
proposal." 

 
Natural England 23/01/2019  

"Summary of Natural England's Advice; 

No objection.  Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed 
development will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected sites or 
landscapes.  

Natural England’s advice on other natural environment issues is set out below. 

European sites - Morecambe Bay Special Area of Conservation and Ramsar; and 
Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary Special Protection Area 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development will 
not have likely significant effects on the above sites and has no objection to the proposed 
development. 
To meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations, we advise you to record your decision 
that a likely significant effect can be ruled out.  

Morecambe Bay Site of Special Scientific Interest  

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development will 
not damage or destroy the interest features for which the site has been notified and has no 
objection.  
  

Page 61 of 103

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones 

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk 
Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be used during the planning application validation 
process to help local planning authorities decide when to consult Natural England on 
developments likely to affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from 
the data.gov.uk website 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other natural 
environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the meantime you 
have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further information 
on this consultation please send your correspondences to 
consultations@naturalengland.org.uk ." 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 Low Peasholmes Farm is a long-standing farm complex located to the north west of 
Peasholmes Lane, approximately 0.5km from the junction with the Coast Road. The farm lies 
in open countryside with a small hamlet of dwellings immediately to the west and a scattering 
of dwellings, mainly bungalows, further to the south on the coast road. Rampside Miniature 
Golf Links is also located on the coast road approximately 500m to the south west of the site. 
The topography is predominantly level adjacent the coastline but undulates slightly heading 
inland and the total farm size extends to some 40 Hectares. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The proposal relates to the erection of a livestock building to provide housing for young 
cattle. The current 40 Hectare farm is tenanted out to a dairy farmer who grazes the land 
along with the production of silage in the summer. During the winter the cattle are housed 
within an existing building; the livestock varies from weaned calves through to dairy cattle. 
The agent advises that the farm currently has a shortage of open sided, straw bedded 
buildings for young cattle which the applicant wishes to keep separate. The building is a 
simple mono-pitched structure with open gated sides and a fibre cement sheeted roof to 
match the adjacent farm buildings, incorporating a GRP rooflight. The overall footprint 
dimensions are 4.65m by 4.55m; the maximum height is proposed as 4.27m, sloping down to 
3.05m. The gated sides are to allow for ventilation when housing young cattle. 

 

Page 62 of 103

Page 112

Agenda Item 8



 

3. Background 

3.1 There is currently a mast on the site registered to Vodafone and Telefonica, together with 
their base station, which was approved in 2004. The agent has advised that Vodafone have 
not signed the lease to use the mast since January 2017 and this is the subject of a legal 
dispute. 

3.2 It appears that a change in telecoms legislation has given more powers to telecoms 
companies in recent years. For many decades, farmers (and others) have been able to 
benefit from additional income by allowing the siting of masts on their land. The masts have 
generally been used to expand mobile phone signal and wi-fi coverage. Historically, the 
leases have been the results of negotiations between the two parties meaning that rentals 
have varied nationwide. However, the introduction of the Electronic Communications Code in 
December 2017 brought a change in legislation meaning that operators can apply to the court 
to impose an agreement on the landowner without their consent and rental costs have been 
driven down. Under the new legislation, the valuation for sites is based on the value to the 
land-owner, rather than the operator. The Electronic Communications Code sets out rules in 
relation to termination agreements and the removal of masts. 

4. Relevant History 

 
4.1 98/2004/0794 Low Peasholmes Farm Peasholmes Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA13 0QB Proposed Vodafone installation of a 15 metre timber monopole with 4 no. 
antennas, 1 no. 300mm transmission dish, 1 no. 600mm transmission dish, radio equipment 
housing and ancillary development. Approved 31/08/2004 

5.  Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

5.1 National Guidance seeks to promote a prosperous rural economy by supporting the 
expansion of all types of business subject to appropriate environmental/amenity safeguards. 

5.2 Paragraph 83 advises:"Planning policies and decisions should enable:  

a) the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both through 
conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings;  

b) the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses"  

In relation to masts, Paragraph 114 advises: "Local planning authorities should not impose a 
ban on new electronic communications development in certain areas, impose blanket Article 
4 directions over a wide area or a wide range of electronic communications development, or 
insist on minimum distances between new electronic communications development and 
existing development.  

Page 63 of 103

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



 

5.3 They should ensure that: 

a) they have evidence to demonstrate that electronic communications infrastructure is not 
expected to cause significant and irremediable interference with other electrical equipment, 
air traffic services or instrumentation operated in the national interest; and  

b) they have considered the possibility of the construction of new buildings or other structures 
interfering with broadcast and electronic communications services." 

5.4 In this case, removal of the mast to facilitate the farm building would be a matter for 
negotiation between the applicant and the mast company directly. 

Saved Policies 

5.5 The Development Plan provides very specific advice on farm buildings with Policy D21 
stating that "new farm buildings will, in general, be required to be sited within or adjacent to 
an existing farm building complex or in other well screened locations and to be subject to a 
complementary design and use of materials, with, where necessary, a "planting" scheme. 

5.6 Policy D1 relates to development in the open countryside and supports development  only 
where there is a demonstrable need that cannot be met elsewhere. The policy has been 
found to be overly restrictive by Inspectors in previous appeals and not to conform to the 
NPPF. 

Emerging Policies 

5.7 The new development plan differs from the old in that there are no emerging policies 
specific to farm buildings although Policy DS5 sets out general guidance on good design. In 
particular, Policy DS5 requires that proposals should demonstrate how they integrate and 
where possibly conserve and enhance the character of the adjoining natural environment. 
Additional reference is made to making the most effective and efficient use of the site. 

Design 

5.8 The building is a simple, functional  mono-pitched structure with open gated sides and a 
fibre cement sheeted roof to match the adjacent farm buildings. It is well sited within the farm 
complex and group of buildings and for functional reasons is sited adjacent to the field gate 
so that calves can be separated easily. The form and scale is unimposing and has little 
impact on the site in design terms given the context as a working farm. Given that the 
adjacent higher buildings are clad in grey cement sheeting and are in the foreground of the 
proposal there would be little benefit in requiring a dark green cladding or similar more 
aesthetically attractive material in this instance which would normally be required for locations 
with more open aspects. Whilst the proposal will not enhance the natural environment but 
rather have a fairly neutral impact it will integrate well with existing buildings and as such 
meets the aims of Saved design policy D21 and emerging policy DS5. 

 

Page 64 of 103

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



 

Impact on the rural environment 

5.9 The proposed building is extremely modest in the context of farm buildings, providing a 
holding area for young calves only. It is sited immediately adjacent to a number of much 
larger farm buildings which would enclose it to the east, west and south providing a 
significant degree of screening meaning that public views are extremely limited. As such, 
there is very little visual impact on the rural environment. 

Other issues 

5.10 The site is already an active livestock farm and the introduction of a modest additional 
building, well screened by existing farm buildings, is not felt to have any impact on the 
amenity of the nearby residents. 

5.11 Given the size of the holding and the modest requirements, it appears that there is a 
reasonable need for a building of the size proposed for the functioning of the applicant's 
holding. Approval would therefore accord with the Framework objectives of supporting the 
rural economy. 

5.12 The site is currently occupied by a mast, should the farmer wish to proceed he would 
need to negotiate re-siting of the mast with the provider. He is unable to remove the mast as 
it is private property and so the granting of planning consent has no relevance to the 
ownership issues; the grant of planning consent does not necessitate the removal of the mast 
unless agreement is reached between both parties, as such the proposal does not conflict 
with Paragraph 114 of the Framework. This is considered to be a private matter and not an 
issue for consideration by the Planning Authority in a similar way  a boundary dispute over a 
fence would be  with a householder application. As such, the objections raised on this basis 
can be given little weight. 

5.13 A significant effect can be ruled out in relation to the Habitats Regulations. 

6. Conclusions 

6.1 The design of the barn would accord with saved policy D21, and emerging Policy DS5. 
Approval of the proposal would also meet the aims of the Framework in relation to supporting 
agricultural development. Whilst the farmer and the telecom operator remain in dispute 
this does not have any bearing upon this application. Resolving the dispute remains a matter 
for the parties involved, the means for which remain outside of the Planning process. 

7. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

  

 

Page 65 of 103

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 7.1.2019 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this consent: 
Plan and Elevations Drawing No. P6215-01 
Site Plan 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved by 
the Planning Authority. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
3. Where the use of the building for the purposes of agriculture within the unit permanently 
ceases within 10 years of the date of the building being substantially completed and planning 
permission has not been granted for an alternative use then the building shall be removed 
from the site and the land reinstated to its former condition, within 6 months from the date the 
agricultural use permanently ceased, the reinstatement being in accordance with written 
details that have been subject to prior agreement with the Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the building is removed if it is no longer required for the purposes of 
agriculture on the holding. 
 
4. The developer shall notify the Planning Authority in writing of the date which the building is 
substantially completed within a period of 28 days of the date that completion occurs. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to give effect to Condition 3 above. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

_______________________________________________________________________  

 

Page 66 of 103

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



Page 67 of 103

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



Page 68 of 103

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 8



B13/2019/0034 
Planning Committee  

16
th
 April 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B13/2019/0034 Date Valid :21/01/2019 

Address : Proposed House, New Road 
Askam-in-Furness, Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Erection of a two bedroom bungalow (corrected description) 

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

Applicant : Mr S Norman   Agent : Ms Kirsty Frame   

Statutory Date : 18/03/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-078 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-127 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy B4 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D1 
3. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 
4. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B10 
5. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B13 
6. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B3 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy C3a - Water 
management 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy C5 - Promoting 
Renewable Energy 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

Page 69 of 103

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS3 - 
Development Strategy 

6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
7. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS6 - 

Landscaping 
8. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI1 - Green 

Infrastructure 
9. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI3 - Green 

Corridors 
10. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI4 - Green 

Spaces 
11. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI9 - Private 

Garden Boundaries 
12. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H1 - Annual 

Housing Requirement 
13. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H2 - Distribution of 

Housing 
14. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H3 - Allocated 

Housing Sites 
15. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H4 - Development 

Cordons 
16. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H7 - Housing 

Development on Windfall Sites 
17. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H9 - Housing 

Density 
18. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HC1 - Health and 

Wellbeing 
19. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HC5 - Crime 

Prevention 
20. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I1 - Developer 

Contributions 
21. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I4 - Sustainable 

Travel Choices 
22. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I6 - Parking 
23. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy N1 - Protecting 

and enhancing landscape character 
24. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy N2 - Safeguarding 

and improving soils 
25. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy N3 - Protecting 

biodiversity and geodiversity 
26. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy N4 - Protecting 

other wildlife features 

 

 

 

Page 70 of 103

Page 120

Agenda Item 8



Summary of Main Issues 

The site falls outside of the development cordon in the Saved Development Plan, though in 
the Emerging Local Plan it both falls within the cordon and is an allocated housing site.  
Whilst the Emerging Plan is not yet formally adopted policy, it does carry considerable 
weight due to the stage of preparation.  This has to be considered in the context of the age 
of the Saved policy document, the relevant policies of which are considered to be largely 
out of date. 

Non Material Considerations 

 none 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Alexander Place Hillcrest, Prospect, Solitaire, West View, 
Lots Road Askam Village School, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Natural England 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71 of 103

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



List of Organisation Responses 

  
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 20/02/2019  

“This application was discussed at the meeting held on Tuesday 19 February 2019. There 
were no objections from the parish council or members of the public present.” 

  
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection) 19/02/2019  

“Thank you for the above consultation. I have read the available documents and I note that 
a Phase 1 Desk Study has been mentioned in the 'Design and Access Statement' but has 
yet to be completed. I would request that this is undertaken as soon as possible. 

In the absence of a contamination assessment, I would recommend that conditions 
are imposed on any Planning Consent granted, based on the following: 

1. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk study, site 
reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to investigate and assess the risk 
of potential contamination, is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified 
contaminated land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and 
Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination  (CLR11)).” 

  

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 25/01/2019  

“Building Regulation Approval required for the proposals.” 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 25/01/2019  

“No comment” 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 11/02/2019  

“The access from the U6107 Highway maintainable at public expense 30mph speed road to 
the private site.  The road is a 30mph speed road therefore there should be 60m at the 
minimum in both direction back by 2.4m and at a height of 1.05m above the carriageway.  
Drivers need to be able to see obstructions 2m high down to a point 600mm above the 
carriageway.  Within the visibility splay or sight line envelope there should be no 
obstructions to vision such as walls or vegetation etc within the vertical profile.  If any 
obstructions need to be reduced or removed within the visibility splay, it should be within 
the applicants ownership. 

Page 72 of 103

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



 

 

If the required visibility splays cannot be achieved, we would strongly recommend they 
carry out a speed survey or show speeds reflect the required visibility splays. 

The access drive shall be surfaced in bituminous or cement bound materials, or otherwise 
bound and shall be constructed and completed before the development is brought into use.  
This surfacing shall extend for a distance of at least 5 metres inside the site, as measured 
from the carriageway edge of the adjacent highway. 

Reason:         In the interests of highway safety. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies:  LD5, LD7, LD8 

Once these alterations have been resubmitted I will be in a better position to look into this 
further otherwise I will have no alternative but to recommend refusal. 

Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 

No works and/or any person performing works on any part of the Highway, including 
Verges, will be permitted, until in receipt of an appropriate permit allowing such works. 
Enquires should be made to Cumbria County Councils Streetwork’s team. 

Cumbria County Council LLFA  

The proposal shows new surface water connection to the existing watercourse. This should 
be consulted with the LFRM consenting team. 

No development shall commence until Land Drainage / Ordinary Watercourse consent has 
been granted for the proposed changes to the watercourse flowing through the site. Contact 
LFRM Consent LFRM.consent@cumbria.gov.uk for information and guidance. 

Reason:    To protect and enhance the natural environment surrounding the watercourse." 

  
Natural England 06/02/2019  

"Natural England has no comments to make on this application or the amended description. 
  

Natural England has not assessed this application for impacts on protected species.  
Natural England has published Standing Advice which you can use to assess impacts on 
protected species or you may wish to consult your own ecology services for advice. 

Natural England and the Forestry Commission have also published standing advice on 
ancient woodland and veteran trees which you can use to assess any impacts on ancient 
woodland. 

Page 73 of 103

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



 

The lack of comment from Natural England does not imply that there are no impacts on the 
natural environment, but only that the application is not likely to result in significant impacts 
on statutory designated nature conservation sites or landscapes.  It is for the local planning 
authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent with national and local 
policies on the natural environment.  Other bodies and individuals may be able to provide 
information and advice on the environmental value of this site and the impacts of the 
proposal to assist the decision making process. We advise LPAs to obtain specialist 
ecological or other environmental advice when determining the environmental impacts of 
development. 

We recommend referring to our SSSI Impact Risk Zones (available on Magic and as a 
downloadable dataset) prior to consultation with Natural England. Further guidance on 
when to consult Natural England on planning and development proposals is available on 
gov.uk at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-planning-authorities-get-environmental-advice 

As a future guide could you please send all submissions for consultation and any 
associated documentation to consultations@naturalengland.org.uk." 

United Utilities 24/01/2019  
 
"With reference to the above planning application, United Utilities wishes to draw attention 
to the following as a means to facilitate sustainable development within the region. 

Drainage Comments 

In  accordance  with  the  National  Planning  Policy  Framework  (NPPF)  and  the National 
 Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. The NPPG clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated by the developer when 
considering a surface water drainage strategy. We would ask the applicant to consider the 
following drainage options in the following order of priority: 

1. into the ground (infiltration); 
2. to a surface water body; 
3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 
4. to a combined sewer. 

We recommend the applicant implements the scheme in accordance with the surface water 
drainage hierarchy outlined above. In line with these comments, we recommend the 
following condition is attached to any approval notice. 

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. Surface water shall be 
drained in accordance with the hierarchy of drainage options in national planning practice 
guidance. In the event of surface water discharging to public sewer, the rate of discharge 
shall be restricted to the lowest possible rate which shall be agreed with the statutory 
undertaker prior to connection to the public sewer. 

Page 74 of 103

Page 124

Agenda Item 8



Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution. 

Note for the applicant: 

In the event of this application being approved and the above condition included in any 
subsequent Decision Notice, United Utilities will not provide formal comment on this 
condition through the Local Authority planning process. If the applicant intends to connect 
to the public sewer system, discharge rates will instead be reviewed as part of our standard 
S106 sewer connection process which relates to new connections to the public sewer.  For 
brownfield sites, we wish to target a reduction in accordance with national standards on 
sustainable drainage which seek to reduce run-off to greenfield rates.  Our minimum 
expectation on a brownfield site will be a 50% reduction in the rate of discharge.  In 
demonstrating the required reduction in discharge rates, full details and associated 
evidence of existing drainage connections from the site shall be submitted to justify the 
proposed reduction. 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
Adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The detailed layout should be prepared with 
consideration of what is necessary to secure a development to an adoptable standard. This 
is important as drainage design can be a key determining factor of site levels and layout. 
The proposed design should give consideration to long term operability and give United 
Utilities a cost effective proposal for the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application 
be approved and the applicant wishes to progress a S104  agreement,  we  strongly 
recommend  that  no  construction  commences  until  the  detailed drainage design, 
submitted as part of the S104 agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by 
United Utilities. Any works carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved are 
done entirely at the developers own risk and could be subject to change. 

Details of both our S106 sewer connections and S104 sewer adoptions processes 
(including application forms) can be found on our website 
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders- developers.aspx 

Please note we are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the local 
watercourse system.   This is  a  matter for you to discuss with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and /  or the Environment Agency if the watercourse is classified as main river. 

Water Comments 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project which should be accounted for in the project timeline for design and 
construction. 

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at  DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk. 

Page 75 of 103

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



 

Alternatively, the applicant can visit our website to find further information and relevant 
application forms http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx 

Please  note,  all  internal  pipework  must  comply  with  current  Water  Supply (water 
fittings) Regulations 1999. 

 

General comments 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

It  is  the  applicant's responsibility to  demonstrate the  exact relationship between 
any United Utilities' assets and the proposed development. 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/.   You can also view 
the plans for free. To make an  appointment to  view our sewer records at  your local 
authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water and the 
sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring to book an 
appointment. 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the 
matter further. 

For any further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, please visit our 
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx." 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The site is located at the corner of Alexander Place and New Road in a plot forming part 
of the wider ownership of Dale View, though the application site is outside of the residential 
curtilage of that property, as it also includes a small holding.  A small cluster of farm 
buildings associated with past farming activities are located between the proposed 
development site and the existing dwelling.  The site is relatively flat and borders a wider 
open area which continues to the east to Lots Road.  This wider area, including the 
application site, forms a draft housing allocation in the emerging plan.  

 

Page 76 of 103

Page 126

Agenda Item 8



2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Erection of a two bedroom bungalow (corrected description) 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 No history revealed for this application. 

 

4. Officer Assessment 

Principle of the development 

4.1 The site is located outside of the Askam & Ireleth Residential Development Cordon as 
defined in the Saved Local Plan.  Whilst the development is therefore contrary to Saved 
Policies B3 and B13, and requires the application to be reported to members, the proposed 
Development Cordon boundary differs within the emerging Local Plan.  The site falls within 
that revised boundary.  However, as Policy B3 has been established to be out of date, the 
'tilted balance' is engaged under Paragraph 11 of the NPPF.  This provides a presumption 
in favour of granting permission unless the application of policies in the framework that 
protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the framework 
taken as a whole.  

4.2 The Submission Draft Local Plan is a material consideration in determining the planning 
application. In addition to the development cordon, the site is within emerging housing 
allocation REC31 in the Submission Draft Local Plan, as identified under emerging Policy 
H3 and on the Submission Draft Proposals Map. Planning Policy advise that no 
modifications are proposed for this site allocation. Therefore, the principle of new housing 
on this site is acceptable in accordance with the Submission Draft Local Plan.  

4.3 The location of the site immediately adjoins the edge of the existing residential area, the 
dwellings fronting onto Alexander Place.  Nearby services are accessible (500 metres) with 
a bus stop opposite the site on New Road.  A nearby school and Askam train station are 
also within walking distance.  The location can therefore be considered sustainable. 

Design considerations 

4.4 The design provides for a single bungalow in the lower southeastern corner of the plot.  
It is to be sited to the east of the agricultural buildings and outbuildings currently within the 
site.  A new access, serving this dwelling only is proposed from New Road.  Given the 
wider draft allocation is accessible from both New Road and Lots Road, the location of the 
dwelling appears to be acceptable in the sense the proposal does not seem to prejudice the 
development of the remaining part of proposed site REC31.  Even if the wider residential 
allocation did not come forward, the siting adjacent to the existing cluster of buildings 
prevents the bungalow being unduly isolated, preventing any significant harm to the open 
countryside character of the area and consistent with Saved Policy D21. 

Page 77 of 103

Page 127

Agenda Item 8



 

4.5 The bungalow is described in the Design & Access Statement as of a modern design, 
providing a link between the existing settlement and the proposed housing development.  
This provides an opportunity for a different character than already present.  The modern 
features are found in the increased level of glazing, both in the front gable feature and the 
front left hand corner which features wrap around glazing.  Beyond that the general form of 
the bungalow remains consistent with those found in the vicinity, albeit with a larger 
footprint and slightly higher ridge.  Concrete roof tiles and smooth white render are 
appropriate for the locale.  

Access 

4.6 The aforementioned driveway resulted in a request for further information from 
Cumbria Highways, as the visibility splays shown were short of the required minimum 
distance of 60m.  It was discussed with the applicants agent that either the splays would 
need to be re-assessed or that a speed survey would be required to demonstrate the 
shorter distance shown would be safe.  Amended plans have been submitted showing 60m 
splays are achievable in both directions, thereby providing a safe access.  Adequate 
parking and turning facilities are located within the site.  It is considered the grassed 
area/informal footpath currently fronting New Road is adequate for a single dwelling, 
especially as a surfaced pavement is available on the opposite side of the road.  The bus 
stop is also on the opposite side and this already requires a crossing of the road. The wider 
residential development likely coming forward in new plan increases the viability/potential to 
upgrade the entire length of footpath if required, particularly as it will then serve more than 
the current single interest.  The development is well provided for by a range of modes of 
transport in accordance with Emerging Policy I4. 

Drainage 

4.7 The foul is proposed to connect to the main sewer via a pump and rising main 
arrangement - this is preferable to isolated package treatment plants/septic tanks as 
advised in the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).  It is intended to discharge 
surface water into an existing culverted watercourse, which itself connects to a surface 
water drain in Alexander Place.  Again, this is preferable to discharging to a combined 
sewer and appears to be the only feasible option as the agent has claimed infiltration is not 
possible following a percolation test showing the ground as being unsuitable.  Full details 
(including sufficient justification for the means of discharge) can be required by condition 
prior to installation, but in principle the outline proposal is considered acceptable in line with 
Emerging Policy C3a.  Details of the access drive can also be required by condition, both in 
terms of permeability potential and to ensure bound materials are used where required. 

Ecology/green infrastructure 

4.8 The 'Barrow Borough Green Infrastructure Strategy Draft Supplementary Planning 
Document' contains information and requirements for the development of the proposed 
sites.  For this allocated site (for which this development is only a small portion) it 
comments, 

Page 78 of 103

Page 128

Agenda Item 8



 

Greenfield site currently outside but adjoining Askam and Ireleth Development Cordon. A 
Green Route should be provided along the eastern site boundary, ensuring that 
development is set back to maintain setting for vista achievable across settlement and to 
maintain a softer edge to street scene and settlement edge character. A Green Link should 
be maintained along the western site boundary to allow for species movement. 

4.9 The dwelling has been set back to provide a softer edge by retaining a more open 
garden area to the front, maintaining the building line associated with the agricultural 
buildings in relation to the angled nature of New Road.  Some hedging/planting is proposed, 
the details of which will be subject to a condition if approved, which should also improve 
biodiversity and habitat creation, and potentially aid species movement through the wider 
site.  Details of the fencing can also be required via condition to allow for through 
movement of animals in line with Emerging Policy GI9.  The small application site does not 
interfere with the eastern or western boundaries of the allocation, thus any required Green 
Route and Link are not prejudiced by the proposal. 

4.10 The submitted ecology report concludes that the land is of low conservation value, that 
no evidence was recorded to suggest use of the site by protected species and that the 
development will not have any negative effect on the Duddon Estuary SSSI RAMSAR site.  
It does advise any clearance of scrub or works to any existing hedgerows or trees is carried 
out outside bird nesting season, which again can be conditioned accordingly to ensure the 
ecology report is followed. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Despite being contrary to the current Development Plan, in policy terms there is a clear 
direction of travel towards the residential development of the wider surrounding area in the 
forthcoming Local Plan.  That notwithstanding, the site is considered to be located within a 
sustainable location which is well connected by transport links, both for vehicular and 
pedestrian/public transport traffic.  The proposed development does not pose any 
ecological or landscape character concern, with proposed landscaping likely to provide 
biodiversity gains.  The NPPF places a strong emphasis on delivering dwellings and this 
proposal helps facilitate that aim in a small way. 

5.2 When considering the benefits (additional housing choice, sustainable location, 
biodiversity gain, transition between existing housing and proposed allocated site) and any 
identified harm (small incursion into open area, potential disruption during bird nesting 
season), it is clear the benefits outweigh the limited harm regardless of which planning 
balance is applied. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 

Page 79 of 103

Page 129

Agenda Item 8



 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 11/01/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
18382_PL01_ 02, 03 rev B, 04 rev A, 05, 06 & 07. 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment Ref BEK-18483-1 November 2018 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
3. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk study, site 
reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to investigate and assess the risk of 
potential contamination, is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice 
for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the 
Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)). 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 
 
4. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a Field 
Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with established procedures 
(BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites 
and Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall be 
undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination and must be 
undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land practitioner. The results of the Field 
Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before any development begins. 
 
 

Page 80 of 103

Page 130

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 
 
5. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no development shall 
take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial 
options and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification plan. The scheme must 
ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 
 
During Building Works 
 
6. Notwithstanding the plans hereby approved or the provisions of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) details of all fences, hedges, wall or 
other means of enclosure around the curtilage of the application site must be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority prior to installation. The means of 
enclosure must incorporate specific measures to assist the local migration of wildlife 
between the side and rear garden boundaries of dwellings. The enclosure approved must 
be completed prior to the beneficial occupation of the development or, in the case of 
hedges, in the first planting season following the commencement of the beneficial use of 
the development. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual and ecological amenities of the area due to the rural location. 
 
7. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the 
Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be halted and 
Field Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation of the 
development. 

Page 81 of 103

Page 131

Agenda Item 8



 
Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 
 
8. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination and 
assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable methodology for testing 
this material should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling frequency, 
testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed (as 
determined by the risk assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall 
then be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 
 
9. Works consisting of the clearance of scrub and work to any hedgerows or trees must 
only be carried out outside of the bird nesting season (March to September). If work is to be 
carried out within this period a breeding bird survey must be carried out and submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to those works commencing. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of nature conservation so as to safeguard recognised protected species of 
wildlife. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until surface water 
drainage works have been implemented in accordance with details that have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Before these details are 
submitted an assessment shall be carried out of the potential for disposing of surface water 
by means of a sustainable drainage system and the results of the assessment provided to 
the Planning Authority. Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be provided, the 
submitted details shall: 
 
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to 
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to 
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 

Page 82 of 103

Page 132

Agenda Item 8



iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which 
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker 
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with the sustainable 
principles found in the NPPF. 
 
11. Unless the Planning Authority gives written agreement that it is impractical to do so, all 
hard surfaced areas associated with vehicle use shall be of permeable construction, and 
detailed drawings (including cross sections of sub surface and surface materials) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to beneficial occupation of any 
part of the development, or in accordance with a phasing scheme agreed in writing with the 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with the sustainable 
principles found in the NPPF 
 
12. The development shall not be brought into use until visibility splays providing clear 
visibility of 60 metres x 2.4 metres measured down the centre of the access road and the 
nearside channel line of the major road have been provided at the junction of the access 
road with the County Highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) relating to permitted development, 
no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or placed and no trees, 
bushes, or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to grow within the identified visibility 
splays. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that in the interests of the safety of highway users a suitable standard of access 
for the development exists at all times and in order to minimise potential hazards 
 
13. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification Report 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to occupation of 
the development. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 

 

Page 83 of 103

Page 133

Agenda Item 8



 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

Page 84 of 103

Page 134

Agenda Item 8



Page 85 of 103

Page 135

Agenda Item 8



Page 86 of 103

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 8



Page 87 of 103

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 8



Page 88 of 103

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 8



Page 89 of 103

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 8



Page 90 of 103

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 8



Page 91 of 103

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 8



B20/2019/0012 
Planning Committee  

16
th
 April 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B20/2019/0012 Date Valid :24/01/2019 

Address : Part of former County Coach, 
Bank Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Change of use to dog day care business and associated works. 

Ward : Ormsgill Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Ms K Austin-Walsh c/o 
Steven Abbott Associates LLP  

Agent : Mr H Tonge Steven Abbott 
Associates LLP  

Statutory Date : 21/03/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-080 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-082 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-180 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D58 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy C3a - Water 
management 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy C3b - 
Groundwater Protection 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy C5 - 
Promoting Renewable Energy 

4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy C7 - Light 
Pollution 

5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - 
Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - 
Sustainable Development Criteria 

Page 92 of 103

Page 142

Agenda Item 8



7. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS3 - 
Development Strategy 

8. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - 
Design 

9. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS6 - 
Landscaping 

10. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy EC4 - Loss 
of Employment Land and Allocated Employment Sites 

11. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI1 - Green 
Infrastructure 

12. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HC1 - 
Health and Wellbeing 

13. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HC4 - 
Access to buildings and open spaces 

14. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HC5 - 
Crime Prevention 

15. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I1 - 
Developer Contributions 

16. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I4 - 
Sustainable Travel Choices 

17. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I6 - Parking 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main considerations are the potential loss of a defined employment site use 
resulting from the change of use of part of the unit and the potential for impact on the 
residential amenity of the wider area, particularly with regards to noise. 

Non Material Considerations 

None. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Bank Lane 2, Sowerby Hall, 
Middlefield 80, 82, 
Park Road Sovereign Chemicals Ltd, 
Parrock Green 2, 4, 
Sike Meadow 1, 2, 
Sowerby Avenue 1, 
Whinsfield Avenue 1, 2, 4, 6, 
   
 

Page 93 of 103

Page 143

Agenda Item 8



Responses Support Object Neutral 

3 0 3 0 

Summary of objections 

All 3 responses originate from the same household and all cite noise as the reason 
for concern.  The quoted distances of the dwelling from the site are not accurate, 
with the site being further away from the property than that stated. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

  
Barrow Borough Council Public Protection (Enforcement) 29/01/2019  

“Have been in contact with the applicant and am happy with the plans for a doggie 
day care facility. Will be working with her to ensure she complies with the animal 
welfare legislation which will enable her to gain a licence.” 

Barrow Borough Council Public Protection (Pollution) 19/02/2019  

“Thank you for the above consultation. Having read the documents submitted and 
assessing the building layout (formerly County Coach), I can confirm that the solid 
structure would attenuate a good proportion of the noise resulting from barking dogs. 
Although some noise would be perceivable at the nearest residential receptors, I 
believe this would be reasonable given the high background noise during the day 
from the surrounding industry and A590/ Park Road traffic. 

I would recommend that an open time restriction is placed on the business to keep 
working hours associated with the working day, i.e. 7am-7pm etc.” 

 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 30/01/2019  

“Further to our response to application B20/2018/0569, it is considered that the 
proposal will not have a material effect on existing highway conditions.  I can 
therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal.” 

Page 94 of 103

Page 144

Agenda Item 8



Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 30/01/2019 

“The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) surface water map show minor flooding to 
the site (1 in 30) chance of occurring each year and the Environment Agency (EA) 
surface water maps do not indicate that the site is of in an area of risk." 

  

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site relates to part of the former County Coach Builders unit on 
the corner of Bank Lane and Park Drive, located within the established industrial 
corridor forming an entrance into Barrow.  Only part of the building is included within 
the application site, with a sub-divided section on the eastern warehouse side of the 
premises.  Enterprise car rental and Deemon Dance Academy occupy other parts of 
the building.  The site is easily accessed from the A590 via Bank Lane, with car 
parking in a shared area to the front of the unit.  A rear service yard runs the full 
length of the rear elevation.  The closest dwellings are around 100m away, with an 
intervening open area comprised of vegetated land and a former parking area 
associated with the previous car repair use.   

2.Proposal Details 

2.1 Change of use to dog day care business and associated works. 

3.Relevant History 

3.1 84/2006/0927 County Coachbuilders Ltd Bank Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Advertisement Consent to display a non-illuminated fascia sign at first floor level and 
a free standing illuminated sign. Appcond 31/08/2006. 

4.Officer Assessment 

Principle of use/policy basis 

4.1 The proposal includes the conversion/loss from an 'employment' use (class B2) to 
sui generis for part of the former County Coachworks premises. There are no 
specific policies that deal with the loss of employment uses in the Saved Local Plan. 
In such cases where the Development Plan is silent, National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) paragraph 11 triggers a presumption in favour of granting 
consent, known as the 'tilted balance.'  It states, 

"for decision taking this means granting permission unless: i. the application of 
policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed ; or ii. any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole."    

 

Page 95 of 103

Page 145

Agenda Item 8



Given the silence on the loss of employment uses in the Development Plan, the 
presumption in favour of granting permission is therefore triggered. 

4.2 Submission Draft Local Plan policy EC4 is a material consideration.  This policy 
deals with the loss of buildings that were last used for employment, and requires the 
developer to submit evidence to support any loss in order to satisfy the criteria of the 
policy. However, during consideration of the proposal this policy was subject to main 
modifications (changes in line with Inspectors comments), with criteria (c) and (d) 
proposed to be deleted. This policy has been in a state of flux during the 
determination of the application and carries limited weight at the current time; as 
such it would not appear to be appropriate to require a statement from the applicant 
demonstrating compliance with the criteria of this policy. It is also has to be 
considered that the proposed use is proposed to employ four staff, therefore limited 
employment will be created.  This and the fact only part of the building is to be 
converted helps to offset the loss of an employment use in this instance. 

Noise 

4.3 3 objections (from the same household) have been submitted, centering on noise 
concern.  They incorrectly comment that the proposal is only 20 yards from their 
dwelling (approx 18m), when in fact the proposal is closer to 100 metres from the 
existing residential properties on Middlefield/Whinsfield Ave.  The site also adjoins a 
site allocated for housing in the emerging Local Plan (Site SHL037).  The NPPF, 
paragraph 180 states that planning decisions should “mitigate and reduce to a 
minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new development – 
and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and the quality of 
life.” Saved Policy D58 states that new development within the vicinity of residential 
areas and offices must not generate noise above existing background levels. Draft 
Policy DS2, criterion (d) in the Submission Draft Local Plan requires that noise and 
other forms of nuisance arising from the proposed development are within 
acceptable levels.  The Borough Public Protection officer has been consulted and 
commented as follows,  

"(...) the solid structure would attenuate a good proportion of the noise resulting from 
barking dogs. Although some noise would be perceivable at the nearest residential 
receptors, I believe this would be reasonable given the high background noise during 
the day from the surrounding industry and A590/ Park Road traffic. I would 
recommend that an open time restriction is placed on the business to keep working 
hours associated with the working day, i.e. 7am-7pm etc." 

4.4 The comments demonstrate that the use should not significantly affect nearby 
residents, given the separation and higher background noise levels; it therefore is in 
compliance with Saved Policy D58 and the NPPF para 180.  Whilst an internal wall 
subdivides this unit from the remainder of the building, there is potential for noise 
transmission resulting from the nature of the use.  In such cases, if not covered by 
Building Regulations, a condition requiring a scheme of acoustic protection can be 
attached.  In considering whether the use will be compatible with the draft housing 
allocation, NPPF 182 states, 

 

Page 96 of 103

Page 146

Agenda Item 8



"Planning policies and decisions should ensure that new development can be 
integrated effectively with existing businesses and community facilities (such as 
places of worship, pubs, music venues and sports clubs). Existing businesses and 
facilities should not have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as a result of 
development permitted after they were established. Where the operation of an 
existing business or community facility could have a significant adverse effect on 
new development (including changes of use) in its vicinity, the applicant should be 
required to provide suitable mitigation before the development has been completed." 

4.5 The issue centres on the fact that the housing allocation is currently not an 
adopted policy and no planning permission for the adjacent land exists either.  
Having discussed this with Public Protection, it would be unreasonable to require a 
survey to potentially mitigate for something which may never come forward.  Indeed 
the NPPF as above would require any future dwellings to mitigate for the existence 
of the commercial use, so as to not bring about unreasonable restrictions on an 
existing use.  To this end, it should also be considered such mitigation would have 
been required anyhow given the existing B2 industrial use.  Recent examples of 
housing approvals near commercial/industrial uses have successfully incorporated 
such mitigation in the design (Brady's Yard, Park Rd/Wilkie Rd) which included items 
such as acoustic fencing, avoiding direct lines of sight to the commercial use, and 
the potential for upgraded glazing etc.  

Other issues 

4.6 As the proposal is for a change of use rather than a new build, it does limit the 
potential to require or incorporate elements of certain emerging policies, such as 
C3a - Water Management, C3b - Ground Water Protection, GI1 - Green 
Infrastructure, HC1 - Health and Wellbeing, HC5 - Crime Prevention and I1 - 
Developer Contributions.  The building is well connected to the highway network and 
served by nearby bus routes, whilst cycle lanes are present on large sections of Park 
Rd.  Furthermore, some customers could well walk to the premises from the nearby 
residential areas, promoting health and wellbeing.  Parking is available off-road to 
the front of the premises for customers from farther afield.  It is not considered that 
any landscaping is required as only a small enclosed fencing area is proposed, and 
would only be seen in the context of the existing industrial setting.  Screening from 
trees/vegetation along Middlefield limits views of the unit in any case. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 97 of 103

Page 147

Agenda Item 8



5.Conclusions 

5.1 The doggy day care use is considered to be an acceptable alternative use, which 
whilst not defined as an employment use within the emerging policies does retain, or 
indeed provide, a level of employment which is a strong economic consideration.  
Furthermore the location in an area of high background noise, with existing 
separation and intervening planting/screening between current residential areas, 
helps mitigate any potential for disturbance as at present.  Further acoustic 
details/upgrades can be sought to minimise noise transmission throughout the wider 
building.  Whilst there is potential for future dwellings arising from a draft housing 
allocation, the NPPF clearly states such future development must mitigate against 
conflict with existing uses to prevent unreasonable restrictions.  Whilst it is 
acknowledged it is slightly awkward timing with the near adoption of the new 
Development Plan, it would be unreasonable to insist on the proposed use 
providing equivalent mitigation as that future housing development may never come 
forward.   

5.2 The limited harm from the loss of an employment use does not significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the economic benefits or bring back into use a vacant 
section of the building, even more so when considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of granting permission arising from the Development Plan 
being silent on the matter. 

6.Recommendation 

I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard 
Duration Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans  

2.The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance 
with the application dated 21/12/18 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this 
consent. 
 
3039-001, 3039-101, 3039-100. 
 
 

Page 98 of 103

Page 148

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings 
approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
3. Within 21 days of a written notification by the Local Planning Authority that a 
substantive complaint has been made to it by other occupants of the building about 
unacceptable noise disturbance from the approved use, the dog daycare operator 
shall appoint an independent consultant to assess the operation and advise suitable 
mitigation measures to prevent subsequent disturbance.  The operator shall then 
implement those measures and continue to operate in accordance with them. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to minimise the potential for noise pollution, thereby conform to Saved policy 
D58 of the Barrow Local Plan Review 1996-2006. 

4. No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in 
accordance with details that have previously been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and 
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any such lighting shall at all 
times be directed and shielded so as to minimise light spillage outside of the 
application site, and shall not thereafter be altered, other than for routine 
maintenance which does not change its details, without the prior consent in writing of 
the Planning Authority. 

Reason 
 
To minimise light pollution in accordance with Saved policy D63 of the Barrow Local 
Plan Review 1996-2006, and in order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 
5. The day care use approved must only take place within the hours of 07:00 and 
19:00, Mondays to Saturdays and it must not take place at all on Sundays or Public 
Holidays. No overnight boarding of animals is permitted. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the area. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 99 of 103

Page 149

Agenda Item 8



Informative  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 
 
 

 

  

  

  

Page 100 of 103

Page 150

Agenda Item 8



Page 101 of 103

Page 151

Agenda Item 8



Page 102 of 103

Page 152

Agenda Item 8



Page 103 of 103

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 8



Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies
 
Note to Members
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the
agenda today.
 
Saved Policies
 
The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan.
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless
material considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise.
 
The tilted balance under paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies
relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5 year housing land
supply. At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The
officers report will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can
be given. Under the tilted balance applications should be approved unless
 
"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the
Framework indicate development should be restricted."
 
The tilted balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a
sufficient supply of housing land.
 
Emerging Policies
 
As the emerging Local Plan is now under examination, the policies within it can be given
weight. The amount of weight each policy has is dependent upon the significance of
unresolved objections to the policy and how consistent it is with the NPPF.
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018
 
NPPF-011
Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
 
For plan-making this means that:
 
a) plans should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their

Page 154

Agenda Item 8



area, and be sufficiently flexible to adapt to rapid change;
 
b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for
housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring
areas (As established through statements of common ground (see paragraph 27),
unless:
 
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution
of development in the plan area (The policies referred to are those in this Framework
(rather than those in development plans) relating to: habitats sites (and those sites listed
in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific
Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage
Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of
archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or coastal
change); or
 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.
 
For decision-taking this means:
 
c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
 
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date (This includes, for applications
involving the provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer,
as set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the
delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement
over the previous three years. Transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test
are set out in Annex 1), granting permission unless:
 
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed (The policies
referred to are those in this Framework (rather than those in development plans) relating
to: habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of
Special Scientific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area

Page 155

Agenda Item 8



of Outstanding Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or
defined as Heritage Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other
heritage assets of archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of
flooding or coastal change); or
 
 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.
 
NPPF-078
To promote sustainable development in rural areas, housing should be located where it
will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities. Planning policies should
identify opportunities for villages to grow and thrive, especially where this will support
local services. Where there are groups of smaller settlements, development in one
village may support services in a village nearby.
 
 
NPPF-080
Planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses
can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs
and wider opportunities for development. The approach taken should allow each area to
build on its strengths, counter any weaknesses and address the challenges of the future.
This is particularly important where Britain can be a global leader in driving innovation
(The Government's Industrial Strategy sets out a vision to drive productivity
improvements across the UK, identifies a number of Grand Challenges facing all
nations, and sets out a delivery programme to make the UK a leader in four of these:
artificial intelligence and big data; clean growth; future mobility; and catering for an
ageing society. HM Government (2017) Industrial Strategy: Building a Britain fit for the
future), and in areas with high levels of productivity, which should be able to capitalise
on their performance and potential.
 
NPPF-082
Planning policies and decisions should recognise and address the specific locational
requirements of different sectors. This includes making provision for clusters or networks
of knowledge and data-driven, creative or high technology industries; and for storage
and distribution operations at a variety of scales and in suitably accessible locations.
 
NPPF-123
Where there is an existing or anticipated shortage of land for meeting identified housing

Page 156

Agenda Item 8



needs, it is especially important that planning policies and decisions avoid homes being
built at low densities, and ensure that developments make optimal use of the potential of
each site. In these circumstances:
 
a) plans should contain policies to optimise the use of land in their area and meet as
much of the identified need for housing as possible. This will be tested robustly at
examination, and should include the use of minimum density standards for city and town
centres and other locations that are well served by public transport. These standards
should seek a significant uplift in the average density of residential development within
these areas, unless it can be shown that there are strong reasons why this would be
inappropriate;
 
b) the use of minimum density standards should also be considered for other parts of
the plan area. It may be appropriate to set out a range of densities that reflect the
accessibility and potential of different areas, rather than one broad density range; and
 
c) local planning authorities should refuse applications which they consider fail to make
efficient use of land, taking into account the policies in this Framework. In this context,
when considering applications for housing, authorities should take a flexible approach in
applying policies or guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would
otherwise inhibit making efficient use of a site (as long as the resulting scheme would
provide acceptable living standards).
 
NPPF-127
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;
 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;
 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);
 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;
 

Page 157

Agenda Item 8



e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and
 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning
policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards
for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for
such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard,
where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community
cohesion and resilience.
 
NPPF-180
Planning policies and decisions should also ensure that new development is appropriate
for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of
pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential
sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development.
In doing so they should:
 
a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from
new development - and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health
and the quality of life ( See Explanatory Note to the Noise Policy Statement for England
(Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs, 2010) );
 
b) identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by
noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason; and
 
c) limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark
landscapes and nature conservation.
 
Saved Local Plan 2001
 
B4
For allocated and unallocated sites the Authority will expect a density of at least 30
dwellings per hectare with higher densities sought in accessible locations and/or where
consistent with good urban design principles.
 
D1
The Borough's countryside will be safeguarded for its own sake and non-renewable and

Page 158

Agenda Item 8



natural resources afforded protection. Development will be permitted in the countryside
only where there is a demonstrable need that cannot be met elsewhere. Where
necessary development is permitted any adverse effect on the rural character of the
surroundings should be minimised subject to the development's operational
requirements.
 
D15
Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will only be permitted
where it preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the Area.  In particular it
should:
  
1.    Respect the character of existing architecture and any historical     associations by
having due regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, scale, enclosure,
detailing and use of traditional materials;
  
2.    Respect existing hard and soft landscape features including open space,     trees,
walls and surfacing;
3.    Respect traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and
  
4.    Respect significant views into or out of the Areas.
  
Applications for:
  
a)    Listed Building Consent; or
  
b)    Planning consent for alterations to un-listed buildings within Conservation Areas or
new buildings affecting the setting of a Listed Building
      
must show full details unless otherwise agreed with the Planning Authority.
 
 
 
D18
Alterations and additions to a Listed Building or those properties affected by the Article
Four Direction will not be permitted if they adversely affect its character and setting or its
architectural or historic features.  In particular, the following alterations are likely to be
unacceptable, particularly where they pose a conflict with the traditions of the building
type or the area;
  
a)    The use of non-traditional roofing materials;

Page 159

Agenda Item 8



  
b)    The use of uPVC or aluminium or other non-traditional materials or styles for
windows and doors;
  
c)    Pebble-dashing, or rendering of any type where this would result in the loss of
features such as stone-work or ornamental brickwork;
  
d)    The removal of any special features such as ornamental ironwork, carved
stonework or brickwork, etc; and
  
e)    The use of uPVC gutters and downspouts.
 
D21
In determining all applications submitted to it the local planning authority will have regard
to the General Design Code set out in paragraph 5.4.27 of this plan.
  
In towns and villages, proposals shall relate to the context provided by buildings, street
and plot patterns, building frontages, topography, established public views, landmark
buildings and other townscape elements.  Proposals that do not respect the local
context and street pattern or the scale, height, proportions and materials of surrounding
buildings and development which constitutes over development of the site by virtue of
scale, height or bulk will not be permitted, unless there is specific justification, such as
interests of sustainability, energy efficiency or crime prevention.
  
Development proposals in the countryside shall respect the diversity and distinctiveness
of local landscape character.  New farm buildings will, in general, be required to be sited
within or adjacent to an existing farm building complex or in other well screened
locations and to be subject to a complementary design and use of materials, with, where
necessary, a 'planting' scheme.
 
D58
New development within the vicinity of residential areas, schools, hospitals and offices
must not generate noise above the existing background levels, as measured in
accordance with the positions, times and methods agreed beforehand with the Authority.
 
G14
The Borough Council will seek to protect and enhance all public footpaths where new
development is to take place and will encourage the linking of footpaths into housing
development to provide easy access to the countryside.
 

Page 160

Agenda Item 8



Housing Chapter Alteration 2006
 
B10
Outside the settlements of Barrow, Dalton and the development cordons of villages
listed in Policy B13, new residential development will only be permitted where it can be
justified in accordance with Annex A of Planning Policy Statement 7 or revisions thereof.
In addition the conversion of agricultural and other rural buildings to residential
accommodation will not be permitted, unless the accommodation is to be occupied by
those whose primary employment is in agriculture or forestry where a dwelling is
essential for the working of a farm or woodland and there is no other suitable
accommodation already available at the holding: or
 
a)    The applicant has made every reasonable attempt to secure suitable business re-
use and the applicant is supported by a statement of the efforts which have been made,
the minimum of which must include the premises being advertised, at a realistic price,
for a minimum of 12 months, that no reasonable offer has been refused and that
evidence is provided to show the property has been advertised on the open market at
four times in local media at roughly equal periods over the year; or
 
b)    Residential conversion is a subordinate part of a scheme for business re-use; and
 
c)    The building is served by satisfactory access; and
 
d)    The scale of the conversion is appropriate to the building, its character and location.
 
B13
In the following villages, residential development and the conversion of existing buildings
for residential purposes will be allowable within the residential cordon, especially if it
contributes to the maintenance of that community, subject to conformity with the criteria
of Policy B3 and the principles of Structure Plan Policy ST3:
 
Askam & Ireleth, Biggar Village, Lindal, Marton, Newton, North Scale, Rampside, Roa
Island.
 
B17
 
Visually dominating side extensions on corner plots or which otherwise intrude
unacceptably on the streetscene will be refused if they are considered to be detrimental
to the character or spaciousness of the area. If, however, this effect can be overcome by
their re-design with a pitched roof or more matching materials the Authority will require

Page 161

Agenda Item 8



the proposal to be amended accordingly.
 
 
B3
Applications for residential development on unallocated sites will be permitted where
they accord with the sequential approach of the Structure Plan and also satisfy the
following criteria:
 
i)    The site is located within the built up area of existing settlements or the development
cordons identified in Policy B13; and
 
ii)    The siting, scale, layout and design (in the materials and form of the buildings) of
the development is sensitive to the local environment, it promotes the principles of
'Secure by Design' and adequate parking provision is made; and
 
iii)    Adequate access arrangements can be provided, including servicing the site by the
public transport and by cycle routes; and
 
iv)    The development is laid out in a way that maximises energy efficiency; and
 
v)    The development will not result in the loss of land which has a recognised or
established nature conservation interest; and
 
vi)    The development must not cause an undue increase in traffic  passing through
existing residential areas such as to be detrimental to residential amenity or highway
safety; and
 
vii)    Adequate water supplies, foul and surface water sewers and sewerage treatment
facilities exist or can be provided; and
 
viii)    'A risk-based approach will be adopted for development in or affecting flood risk
areas to minimise the risk of flooding associated with the site and the potential effect
development of the site might have elsewhere through increased run off or a reduction
in the capacity of flood plains. This shall be in accordance with the  sequential
characterisation of flood risk set out in Table 1 of Planning Policy Guidance Note 25
'Development and Flood Risk; and
 
ix)    Where contamination is suspected, a desk study is undertaken and if necessary a
site investigation is undertaken and remediation strategy submitted.
 

Page 162

Agenda Item 8



Local Plan 2017
 
Emerging Policy C3a - Water management
All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following
measures:
 
a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as defined
by Building Regulations (Approved Document G). By the installation of fittings and fixed
appliances, water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue
consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources.
 
b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage
systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water.
Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity and
contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a Drainage
Strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. Surface
water should be discharged in the following order of priority:
 
i. An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system.
ii. An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse.
iii. An attenuated discharge to public surface water sewer, highway drain or another
drainage system.
iv. An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer.
 
Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence
demonstrating why alternative options are not available.
 
c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by appropriate
maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage schemes.
 
d) On large sites, applicants should ensure that the drainage proposals are part of a
wider, holistic strategy, which coordinates the approach to drainage between phases,
between developers/landowners and over a number of years of construction.
 
e) On greenfield sites, applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the current
natural discharge from a site is at least mimicked.
 
f) On previously-developed land, applicants should target a reduction of surface water
discharge in accordance with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable
drainage produced by DEFRA. In demonstrating a reduction, applicants should include

Page 163

Agenda Item 8



clear evidence of existing positive connections from the site with associated calculations
on rates of discharge.
 
g) Landscaping proposals should consider what contribution the landscaping of a site
can make to reducing surface water discharge. This can include hard and soft
landscaping such as permeable surfaces.
 
h) The treatment and processing of surface water is not a sustainable solution. Surface
water should be managed at source and not transferred. Every option should be
investigated before discharging surface water into a public sewerage network. A
discharge to groundwater or watercourse may require the consent of the Environment
Agency or Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority.
 
The retrofitting of SuDS in locations that generate surface water run-off will be
supported, subject to the criteria above.
 
Emerging Policy C3b - Groundwater Protection
Any proposals for new development within Groundwater Source Protection Zones (St
Bees Sandstone Major Aquifer)  must accord with Environment Agency guidance set out
in its document titled 'Groundwater Protection: Principles and Practice (GP3) August
2013', or any subsequent iteration of the guidance. Applicants with proposals in
groundwater source protection zones should engage in early dialogue with United
Utilities.
 
New development within Groundwater Source Protection Zones will be expected to
conform to the following:
 
 
a) Risk Assessment - a risk assessment and mitigation strategy with respect to
groundwater protection will be required to manage the risk of pollution to public water
supply and the water environment. The risk assessment should be based on the source-
pathway-receptor methodology. It shall identify all possible contaminant sources and
pathways for the life of the development and provide details of     measures required to
mitigate any risks to groundwater and public water supply during all phases of the
development.
 
b) Masterplanning - careful masterplanning is required to mitigate the risk of pollution to
public water supply and the water environment. For example, open space should be
designed so it is closest to the boreholes so as to minimise the potential impact on
groundwater. In addition, an appropriate management regime will be secured for open

Page 164

Agenda Item 8



space features in the groundwater protection zone.
 
c) Construction Management Plan - Construction Management Plans will be required to
identify the potential impacts from all construction activities on both groundwater, public
water supply and surface water and identify the appropriate mitigation measures
necessary to protect and prevent pollution of these waters.
 
For development proposals within Groundwater Source Protection Zone 1, the highest
specification pipework and design in the new sewerage system (pipework, trenches,
manholes, pumping stations and attenuation features) will be required in order to avoid
pollution of public water supply and the groundwater environment.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy C5 - Promoting Renewable Energy
New development must take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use
of energy efficient methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment.
Proposals will be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their
layout and orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible.
 
All new developments will be encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production
equipment, sources of renewable energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for
renewable, low carbon or decentralised energy schemes appropriate to the scale and
location of the development provided they accord with the requirements of Policy C6.
 
Emerging Policy C7 - Light Pollution
The Council will seek to minimise light pollution and applications which propose new
external lighting will be expected to demonstrate that:
 
 
a)    The proposed artificial light has no adverse impact on the locality; or
 
b)    Measures will be taken to avoid, and where appropriate mitigate, any negative
impacts of the effects of new lighting on local amenity resulting from the development;
 
c)    The proposal has no significant impact on a protected site or species e.g. located
on,     or adjacent to, a designated European site or where there are designated
European protected species that may be affected;
 
d)    The proposal is not in or near a protected area of dark sky or an intrinsically dark

Page 165

Agenda Item 8



landscape where it may be desirable to minimise new light sources;
 
e)    The proposal has no impact on wildlife (e.g. white or ultraviolet light) when being
proposed close to sensitive wildlife receptors or areas, including where the light shines
on water
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be
approved wherever possible.
 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and
environmental gains for the Borough.
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that
development should be restricted.
 
 
Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should

Page 166

Agenda Item 8



meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education
facilities;
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity;
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities
infrastructure;
 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly
privacy, security and natural light;
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed
development;
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other
environmental assets;
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity;
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk;
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic

Page 167

Agenda Item 8



environment including heritage assets and their settings; and
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3.
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local
Plan objectives by alternative means.
 
Emerging Policy DS3 - Development Strategy
The Council will pursue an overarching strategy of sustainable balanced growth,
redistributing development across the Borough, to improve the residential environment
of the central Barrow area and whilst also allowing some development adjoining Barrow
and Dalton and within the cordon villages. Other development will be supported where it
complies with local and national planning policy.
 
The distribution of housing development is outlined in Policy H2, and Policy H3 contains
a balanced portfolio of sites, in a range of locations throughout the Borough, both
brownfield and greenfield in order to support the achievement of this Strategy, other
windfall developments will be supported where the proposal accords with national and
local policy.
 
This Strategy seeks to promote the opportunities and strengths enjoyed by the Borough
and achieve sustainable development that enhances its offer in terms of housing,
employment, leisure and culture, and encourages inward investment.
 
Emerging Policy DS5 - Design
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:
 
 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents;
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their
setting;
 

Page 168

Agenda Item 8



c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment;
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas,
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-
structured building layout;
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally
sourced wherever possible;
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees,
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists,
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place;
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion
and public safety;
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can
contribute to design objectives;
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and
people with disabilities;
 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the
provision of appropriate roof pitches.

Page 169

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
Emerging Policy DS6 - Landscaping
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where
appropriate.
 
A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a
significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place.
 
All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees,
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses.
 
Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment.
 
In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate
run off.
 
Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.
 
Emerging Policy EC4 - Loss of Employment Land and Allocated Employment
Sites
In determining planning applications for non-employment uses which involve the loss of
land and/or buildings which are either identified, currently used or were last used for
industrial, business, office or other employment uses (B1, B2, B8), developers will be
required to provide a statement to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority
demonstrating that:

Page 170

Agenda Item 8



 
 
a) There is no demand for land/buildings on the site for employment purposes, including
commercial evidence as to how the site has been marketed over the previous 12
months;
 
b) Interventions to improve the attractiveness of the site for employment uses are not
feasible;
 
c) There is a relative need for the alternative proposed use in this locality; and
 
d) The proposed redevelopment would not compromise the primary employment
function of the locality or the operations of neighbouring users.
 
This policy does not apply to sites which are allocated for other uses in the Development
Plan.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure
The Council, through the preparation and adoption of the Green Infrastructure Strategy
SPD, Masterplans and Development Briefs will identify and promote the creation,
enhancement and protection of a Green Infrastructure Framework designed to maintain,
enhance, expand and connect a network of natural and man-made green and blue
spaces together along with the project focus necessary to secure and implement its
delivery.
 
The Council will work proactively with the community, public sector partners, voluntary
sector, developers and utility providers to:
 
 
(a)     Ensure that all new development contributes to the protection and enhancement of
the Borough's distinctive and valued landscape and settlement character implementing a
network of Green Infrastructure as the context and setting for coherent and locally
distinctive place making.
 
(b)     Utilise landscape and urban design techniques together to assimilate development
and its supporting Green Infrastructure into sustainable, attractive multi-functional
layouts.
 

Page 171

Agenda Item 8



(c)     Integrate sustainable movement choices at all scales that support domestic,
leisure and tourism movements around and beyond the Borough to actively encourage
improved health, fitness and well-being.
 
(d)     Protect and integrate amenity open spaces, playing fields, sports pitches and play
areas within areas of Green Infrastructure including where a need is demonstrated. 
 
(e)     Protect, support and enhance biodiversity by creating inaccessible and well-
connected habitat within and between neighbouring areas that allows wildlife to co-exist
undisturbed whilst improving peoples accessibility to nature;
 
(f)      Include adaptive measures to help offset climate change including sustainable
urban drainage (SUDs) management and tree planting to reduce the impact of flooding
and assist in the cooling of `urban heat islands'; and
 
(g)     Facilitate local food production in allotments, gardens and adjacent agriculture
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy GI3 - Green Corridors
The location of related infrastructure within a Green Corridor will be acceptable providing
that all of the following criteria are met:
 
 
a)     Proposals must demonstrate how existing vegetation and landform features both
within and adjacent to the Green Corridor have informed the layout and design of
infrastructure.
 
b)     An appropriate survey will be required to determine the nature and extent of
ecology within the Green Corridor to ensure that any existing habitats or species are
protected and enhanced and how the resulting environment is to be managed during
and after the construction period.
 
c)     Landscaping proposals will need to demonstrate that only naturally occurring
species are used encouraging durable, low-maintenance natural succession forms of
planting that provide landscaping for infrastructure and continuity of movement and
foraging for wildlife.
 

Page 172

Agenda Item 8



d)     Proposals must demonstrate how accessibility, activity, infrastructure and
development frontage are interwoven together into a landscape-orientated layout
design.
 
e)     Movement through the site layout must be designed clearly as a hierarchy.
Connections between development areas must be legible in terms of siting, design and
landscaping with sufficient variation in route direction, width and enclosure to manage
cycle speeds.
 
f)      Incorporate water intercept and storage capacity sufficient to retain and discharge
current and anticipated levels of surface water drainage appropriately to a suitable
watercourse if required as an intrinsic part of layout and landscape design.
 
g)     Proposals for infrastructure, sports facilities or formal open space including
children's play areas will be encouraged, providing that any structures relate closely with
existing or proposed landscaping and are not in visually isolated or prominent positions.
 
h)    Ensure that all routes and spaces are capable of being at least indirectly overlooked
in contributing to community and personal safety.
 
 
Emerging Policy GI4 - Green Spaces
Green Spaces within the urban area make an important contribution to community life,
streetscene character and biodiversity. They will need to be retained within the existing
built up area as well as being provided for in new housing layouts.
 
Where development is proposed adjacent to a Green Space it will need to show how the
form and character of existing spaces are to be maintained, incorporated or enhanced.
 
Proposals will also need to demonstrate how new green spaces are to provide a focal
setting for new development as part of a wider landscaping scheme that contributes to
creating a sense of place, improved accessibility and community safety.
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy GI9 - Private Garden Boundaries
Development proposals will need to incorporate specific measures to assist the local
migration of wildlife between the side and rear garden boundaries of dwellings.

Page 173

Agenda Item 8



Proposals that actively promote accessibility and habitat for wildlife will be encouraged.
Proposals that would inhibit such movement will be resisted.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H1 - Annual Housing Requirement
Planning permission will be granted for housing proposals that will deliver the housing
allocations set out in this Plan and contribute to achieving an annual average Borough-
wide housing target of at least 119 net additional dwellings per year over the Plan period
2016/17 to 2030/31. This equates to an overall housing requirement over the Plan
period of at least 2261 net additional dwellings.
 
Any unallocated sites which come forward for development which would prejudice the
delivery of this strategy will be resisted. In bringing forward allocations, developers must
comply with the policies within this Local Plan and must help deliver sustainable
communities.
 
When calculating the 5 year housing requirement, any shortfall against this figure since
the start of the Plan period will be added, along with a 20% buffer brought forward from
later in the Plan period where appropriate as required by the NPPF.
 
Housing delivery will be monitored closely and if the number of houses built is not as
expected, interventions will be sought, which may include bringing forward additional
allocations (see Policy H10 and its supporting text).
 
 
Emerging Policy H16 - Loss of sunlight or daylight
Extensions to dwellings will be permitted unless they adversely affect the amenities of
neighbouring properties by virtue of an undue loss of sunlight or daylight or by the
creation of an overbearing impact or unacceptable level of enclosure. The Local
Planning Authority will refer to the standards laid out by the BRE (or any subsequent
replacement standards) on sunlighting and daylighting in its assessments of
applications.
 
Emerging Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy
Proposals for extensions must demonstrate through good design that an acceptable
standard of privacy can be maintained between opposing and neighbouring properties.
Principal windows in the side elevations of habitable rooms at upper floor levels should
be avoided where the privacy of neighbouring occupiers will be compromised. Where
privacy is to be protected by distance alone, a minimum of 21 metres will be required

Page 174

Agenda Item 8



between the facing windows of habitable rooms of opposing homes. Exceptions may be
made for the facing windows of ground floor habitable rooms where adequate screening
exists and in cases where normal standards of separation cannot be achieved and
existing standards will not be eroded by accepting distances of less than 21 metres. In
all situations the use of obscure glazing in the principal windows of habitable rooms will
not be an acceptable measure to overcome the provisions of this policy as this is
deemed to provide a sub-standard level of accommodation.
 
Habitable areas are defined as living rooms, bedrooms, studies, dining rooms, and
kitchens with dining areas.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H2 - Distribution of Housing
In order to encourage sustainable growth in line with the development strategy set out in
Policy DS3, the following hierarchy and development of distribution will be used:
 
Sites have been identified which will deliver housing development concentrated in the
Principal Centre of Barrow (74%); followed by the Key Centre of Dalton (18%), the Local
Centre of Askam & Ireleth (6%) and Newton and Lindal (2%).
 
Housing development outside the settlements listed in this policy will require exceptional
justification. See policy H5.
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H3 - Allocated Housing Sites
In order to meet the housing requirement over the Plan period, a number of specific
sites are allocated for residential development. These are listed in Table 7 and are
identified in the Proposals Maps (Appendices A-C) and in Appendix F.
 
Emerging Policy H4 - Development Cordons
In the following villages, residential development and the conversion of existing buildings
for residential purposes will be allowable within the residential cordon, especially if it
contributes to the maintenance of that community:
 
Askam & Ireleth, Lindal, Newton, North Scale, Rampside (see Appendix G)
 

Page 175

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites
Applications for residential development on windfall sites (i.e. sites that are not allocated
in the Local Plan) will be permitted where they satisfy all of the following criteria:
 
a) The site is located within or adjoining an existing urban area or within a cordon village
identified in Policy H4;
 
b) Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively;
 
c) Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing,
external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character ,
environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area;
 
d) An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in
terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation;
 
e) The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the
highway network;
 
f) The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public
transport, as opposed to the private car;
 
g) The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, drainage,
waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding;
 
h) The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is
adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development;
 
i) Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to provide
for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f);
 
j) Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the
development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the
housing is proposed;
 
k) Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be

Page 176

Agenda Item 8



required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape
features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable
intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence
of settlements;
 
l) The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting;
 
m) There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the
proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and
 
n) The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in the
Development Strategy chapter should be followed.
 
The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible.
 
Emerging Policy H9 - Housing Density
Developers can determine the most appropriate density on a site by site basis, providing
that the scheme meets the design principles set out in this Plan and is appropriate to the
character of the location of the development in negotiation with the planning authority.
Consideration should also be given to housing needs identified in the most up-to-date
Strategic Housing Market Assessment when determining the appropriate density.
 
This will allow a range of densities to be developed and applied to best suit the
character and requirements of different parts of the Borough and ensure sites come
forward in a timely manner.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy HC1 - Health and Wellbeing
The Council will encourage development which promotes health and wellbeing by:
 
a) Providing access to a range of types of housing in sustainable locations;
 
b) Encouraging travel by sustainable means including use of public transport walking
and cycling;
 
c) Promoting access to and use of open space;
 
d) Promoting the use of sustainable construction materials and methods where

Page 177

Agenda Item 8



appropriate;
 
e) Protecting the Borough's natural and heritage assets;
 
f) Supporting a range of sport, recreation and leisure pursuits;
 
g) Supporting health promotion: Including smoking cessation, healthy eating and
breastfeeding campaigns;
 
h) Encouraging reuse of existing buildings for health uses where appropriate;
 
i) Encouraging use of renewable energy technologies where appropriate; and
 
j) Promoting inclusive design which meets the needs of all, including those with mobility
challenges.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy HC4 - Access to buildings and open spaces
1)    Development proposals should make provision for easy, safe and inclusive access
to, into, within and out of buildings, spaces and facilities. The layout and design of
developments should meet the requirements of accessibility and inclusion for all
potential users regardless of disability, age or gender. At the design stage consideration
should be given to the effects of the proposal on the character and appearance of
heritage assets and their settings, where applicable.
 
The Council will have regard to the following criteria when assessing development
proposals:
 
 
a)    The design of entrances and exits and ease of movement through and between
buildings, street furniture, open spaces and pedestrian routes;
 
b)    The location of any development proposal in relation to its potential users;
 
c)    Accessibility to all transport modes, including walking and cycling, and provision of
adequate parking with the appropriate number of parking bays designated for cycles and
motor vehicles, including specified disabled bays;
 
d)    Provision of on-site facilities such as public toilets and appropriate signage.

Page 178

Agenda Item 8



 
 
2) Additionally, where there is a requirement to submit a Design and Access Statement
as part of a planning application it should:
 
 
a)    Demonstrate the approach to inclusive design; and
 
b)    Acknowledge compliance with Part M of the Building Regulations (Access to and
use of buildings) and refer to BS8300:2009 (British Standards - Design of buildings and
their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people - Code of practice) where
appropriate.
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention
The design, layout and location of new development should contribute towards the
creation of a safe and accessible environment, and the prevention of crime, and fear of
crime.
 
Developers should:
 
 
a)    Ensure the design, landscaping or any feature does not create isolated or secluded
areas;
 
b)    Demonstrate the design, layout, screening/landscaping enables a natural
surveillance of the surrounding area and promotes neighbourliness;
 
c)    Incorporate adequate lighting and security measures where appropriate e.g.
communal and parking areas, taking into account the impact on light pollution, the
natural environment and residential amenity;
 
d)    Design layouts to promote ownership by residents and encourage use of communal
areas
 
e)    Create clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes that prevent unobserved
access.

Page 179

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting
The Council will, through planning decisions and in fulfilling its wider functions,
proactively manage and work with partners to protect and enhance the character,
appearance, archaeological and historic value and significance of the Borough's
designated and undesignated heritage assets and their setting.
 
Opportunities will also be pursued, to aid the promotion, understanding and
interpretation of both heritage and cultural assets, as a means of maximising wider
public benefits and in reinforcing Barrow's distinct identity.
 
Key elements which contribute to the Borough's identity, and which will therefore be a
priority for safeguarding and enhancing into the future, include:
 
1. The Furness Abbey Scheduled Ancient Monument and its setting;
 
2. 14th Century castles such Piel Castle and Dalton Castle and key religious sites and
their setting;
 
3. Barrow Town Hall, Ramsden Square and Schneider Square and associated statues
as well as the streets and spaces which interconnect and provide setting for these
assets;
 
4. Wide, Victorian, tree-lined routes into and around Barrow such as Abbey Road and
Hartington Street and the grid-iron pattern of areas of terraced housing in and around
Barrow town centre;
 
5. Remnants of the Borough's industrial heritage including sandstone workshop
buildings, the imposing former worker's tenement blocks on Barrow Island, the slag
bank,  former iron workings and neighbourhoods of older traditional housing.
 
6. Coastal features including Jubilee Bridge, Roa Island jetty, pill boxes, Walney and
Rampside lighthouses and Cavendish Dock;
 
7. Barrow Park, including the cenotaph and bandstand;
 
8. Conservation areas and Listed Buildings across the Borough;

Page 180

Agenda Item 8



 
9. Key cultural assets encompassing parklands, woodland, landscapes, coastlines,
museums, libraries, art galleries, public art, local food and drink and local customs and
traditions.
 
As well as fulfilling its statutory obligations, the Council will:
 
a) Seek to identify, protect and enhance local heritage assets;
 
b) Promote heritage-led regeneration including in relation to development opportunities;
 
c) Produce conservation area appraisals and management plans;
 
d) Develop a positive strategy to safeguard the future of any heritage assets that are
considered to be "at risk";
 
e) Adopt a proactive approach to utilising development opportunities to increase the
promotion and interpretation of the Borough's rich archaeological wealth; and
 
f) Develop a positive heritage strategy across the Borough.
 
 
Emerging Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings
Proposals for works to Listed Buildings, including alterations, extensions or change of
use and development affecting setting should not cause unacceptable harm to its
significance, including those elements which contribute to their special architectural or
historic interest, and setting. Opportunities to enhance and better reveal their
significance will be supported.
 
Proposals which involve substantial harm to, or loss of, a listed building including to its
setting, will only be permitted in exceptional circumstances where it can be
demonstrated that:
 
 
a)    The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and
 
b)    That no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term
through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation;
 
c)    That conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable or public

Page 181

Agenda Item 8



ownership is demonstrably not possible; and
 
d)    The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas
Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will only be permitted
where it preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the Area. Proposals for
all new development, including alterations and extensions to buildings and their re-use,
must be sensitive and appropriate to the character of the area. Any replacement feature
should match the original where it makes a positive contribution to the Conservation
Area and its setting.
 
Proposals must be supported by any relevant Conservation Area Appraisal or
Management Plan.  In particular it should respect all of the following:
 
a) The character of existing architecture and any historical associations by having due
regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, scale, enclosure, detailing and use
of traditional materials;
 
b) Existing hard and soft landscape features including open space, trees, walls and
surfacing;
 
c) Traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and
 
d) Significant views into or out of the Areas.
 
Proposals should also avoid the loss of public and private open space which makes a
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and its
setting.
 
Through Conservation Area Appraisals the Council will identify any opportunities for new
development to enhance or better reveal their significance.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy I1 - Developer Contributions
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is

Page 182

Agenda Item 8



supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure, facilities and services. The
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as
the main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery.
 
All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where
there is capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements /
provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency,
contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements /
improvements are made, and appropriate management arrangements are in place.
Consideration will be given to how these requirements will affect the viability of
development.
 
The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions
towards include, but are not limited to:
 
- Utilities and waste;
 
- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures;
 
- Transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any associated
facilities);
 
- Community Infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage
and geological assets and other community facilities (see 5.2.1.);
 
- Green Infrastructure (such as outdoor sports facilities, open space, parks, allotments,
play areas, enhancing and conserving biodiversity and management of environmentally
sensitive areas); and
 
- Climate change and energy initiatives through allowable solutions.
 
 
Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust
evidence where applicable.
 
Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees.
 

Page 183

Agenda Item 8



 
 
Emerging Policy I4 - Sustainable Travel Choices
Development will be accessible by a range of sustainable transport options, including
walking, cycling and public transport. Early engagement with the Borough Council and
the Local Highways Authority is encouraged. Development likely to generate significant
levels of transport within isolated and poorly accessible areas will be resisted unless a
clear environmental, social or economic need can be demonstrated.
 
Proposals should provide direct and safe access to the existing footpath and cycle
network including pedestrian links between developments and bus stops to maximise
use of public transport to access green space, shopping, schools, health and other
amenities. Where this would require the provision of links beyond the development site,
such as provision of new footpaths and cycleways or a new or enhanced bus service an
appropriate planning obligation will be negotiated between the local planning authority
and the applicant.
 
Pedestrian and cycle routes within new developments must be suitably lit so as to create
a safe, attractive and useable environment for all.
 
Development proposals located on, or adjacent to, a proposed network of cycle routes
should incorporate the appropriate section of route, and / or links to it. Where
development affects the line of an existing route, the route will be required to be
reinstated, or an acceptable alternative provided. The continuing integrity of the route
should be maintained through the construction process. Routes, both interim and
replacement, should be constructed to a standard and design acceptable to the Council
and consistent with the Green Infrastructure Strategy requirements.
 
Secure cycle parking provision, in accordance with the Council's adopted guidelines, will
be required in all new car parks, particularly those associated with housing,
employment, retail, leisure and educational developments. In addition the Authority will
encourage the provision of shower facilities at employment-generating developments.
 
The Council will encourage the integration of vehicle charging infrastructure within new
development, particularly commercial development.
 
Emerging Policy I6 - Parking
Proposals for new developments will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate
that adequate parking provision has been provided in consultation with the Local
Highways Authority and in accordance with the parking standards in the "Parking

Page 184

Agenda Item 8



Guidelines in Cumbria" SPG or any update to it.
 
 
In areas suffering from significant on-street parking problems, greater provision will be
sought where possible, or alternative arrangements will be required. When applying
parking standards each site should be assessed on its own merits and, if a developer
can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the authority that their proposed parking provision
is sufficient, the 'Parking Guidelines in Cumbria' can be relaxed in favour of the
demonstrated proposal.
 
 
The design of on and off site parking provision will be safely accessible and appropriate
to the streetscene and character of the local area. Consideration should be given to
Policy C3 (water management) and Policy DS6 (landscaping).
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing landscape character
Land use proposals should protect and enhance where appropriate, local landscape
character, as defined by contemporary adopted local landscape character guidance,
currently the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit. In addition, major
land use proposals will require an assessment of the effects of the proposed
development on landscape character and visual effects at the time of submission.
 
Where new development will impact upon the character of the landscape, such impact
will need to be minimised and priority will be given to protecting and enhancing the
landscape's distinct assets. Where there is loss or damage to the assets, the applicant
must submit a statement demonstrating that this is unavoidable e.g. the development
cannot be sited elsewhere due to operational requirements.  In cases such as these, the
unavoidable damage must be mitigated, and unavoidable loss must be compensated
for, so that there is no net loss in resources.
 
High protection will be given to the undeveloped coast in order to maintain its openness,
tranquillity, heritage and nature conservation value and to maintain the Borough's
recreation and tourism appeal.
 
High protection will also be given to the setting of the Lake District National Park in order
to maintain the valued views to and from this nationally designated area, its tranquillity

Page 185

Agenda Item 8



and its attractiveness to tourists.
 
Measures to enhance the character of the Borough's landscape will be supported, with
particular importance given to the following:
 
 
a)    Improved access to the landscape for recreation and tourism, including managed
access to the undeveloped coast.
 
b)    The regeneration of unsightly brownfield sites, particularly former industrial sites.
 
c)    Increase in tree and woodland cover where such planting complements the scale of
the landscape.
 
d)    Enhancement of the nature conservation value of the landscape.
 
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy N2 - Safeguarding and improving soils
Where appropriate, new development will be expected to safeguard and improve soils
that are situated on the site. Applicants for new development will be required to submit a
Soil Resource Survey which identifies the quality, characteristics and distribution of the
soils on the site. This should be followed by a Soil Resource Plan which sets out how
the soils will be managed sustainably during construction.
 
Developers are encouraged to include areas within residential development that provide
suitable conditions for food growing. Such areas should be integrated into the
development, taking account of the need for a reliable water supply, shelter and
adequate access, and should provide suitable soil quality and depth. Alternatively,
proposals for improvements to nearby allotments will be considered.
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity
The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances
biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should protect,

Page 186

Agenda Item 8



maintain and enhance the quality of biodiversity habitat and improve access to important
biodiversity areas, and will be required to show full details of measures to achieve this in
the form of a suitable Management Plan. Consideration must be given to the relevant
Supplementary Planning Guidance.
 
Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites
 
There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of
international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct
or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its
qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant
partner organisations are satisfied that:
 
The development cannot be located on an alternative site with less harmful impacts and
 
Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate habitat creation,
restoration or enhancement on site or in another appropriate location, in agreement with
the Council and relevant partner organisations, via planning conditions, agreements or
obligations.
 
Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant
residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide
an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured
through planning conditions or planning obligations.
 
Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to
such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative
reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats
and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken
to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is
protected.
 
Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife
corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection
from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be
demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location.
 
Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity
 
Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning

Page 187

Agenda Item 8



application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the
correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the
proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site.
 
Proposals for new development on designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites should
be accompanied by appropriate surveys identifying the potential effects of the
development upon the designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites.
 
The surveys should be undertaken by a qualified person in order to provide a basis for
decisions on:
 
a) The development potential of the land
 
b) Any necessary appropriate mitigation
 
c) The means of working necessary to avoid harm to wildlife.
 
Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work
with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features
New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for
new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a
Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows,
ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping
proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the
location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate.
 
Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that
location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage
to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland.
 
Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must
justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified,
replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required.
 
Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new
wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be

Page 188

Agenda Item 8



required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as
appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements.
 
 
 
 

Page 189

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16th April  2019 
 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0149 Town Hall, Duke 
Street, Barrow-in-
Furness  

Listed Building Consent for internal alterations to 
existing ground floor office area and reception. 

10 2019/0069 Land at North Scale, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Change of use of waste land to public amenity 
space including the installation of a sandstone 
block and metal viking longboat structure. 

24 2019/0009 79 Romney Park, 
Dalton-in-Furness 
 

Erection of a two storey side extension to provide a 
larger kitchen, utility and cloak room to ground floor 
along with an en suite bedroom to first floor. 

36 2018/0817 Hayeswater Drive, 
Dalton-in-Furness 
 

Minor material amendment to allow a revised 
house type on plot 12 via a variation of condition 
no. 2 (approved plans) for planning permission 
B07/2016/0126 (Erection of 13 dwellings) 

49 2019/0150  Salthouse Mills Industrial 
Estate, Salthouse Mills, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Erection of enclosure fence to boundary with 
vehicular and pedestrian access gates. Fence to 
be 2.4 metres high v-mesh type powder coat 
finished in green with gates to match. 

59 2019/0011 Low Peasholmes Farm, 
Peasholmes Lane, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Erection of livestock building 

69 2019/0034 Proposed House, New 
Road, Askam-in-Furness 

Erection of a two bedroom bungalow (corrected 
description)  

 

92 2019/0012 Part of former County 
Coach,Bank Lane, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Change of use to dog day care business and 
associated works. 
 

 

Page 190

Agenda Item 8



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 16th April, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Development Services 
Manager (Planning)

(D)

Title: Unauthorised Advertisements within the Borough

Summary and Conclusions: 

Following a noticeable increase in roadside advertising, to the detriment of 
highway safety and visual amenity, Borough Officers have engaged with 
County Highway Officers seeking a joint initial programme to ensure the 
clearance of illegal signage along the Borough’s roads.  The first phase will 
target the section of the A590 under the control of the County Council.

Recommendations: 

To note the update on unauthorised advertisements within the Borough.

Report

Last year Members agreed to Officers undertaking action to seek removal of 
various unauthorised advertisements along the A590, with specific reference 
to trailer advertisements.  Due to resource implications we have achieved very 
limited success. 

In light of a marked increase in unauthorised adverts along the A590, Borough 
Officers have met with County officials to enter into a partnership with the 
Highway Authority. 

The vast majority of the adverts are either signage attached to highway 
furniture or trailers parked on County Council controlled land.  The partnership 
would allow for the Highway Act legislation to be used in such cases, although 
we can also use the Control of Advertisements Regs for adverts on private 
land.

Officers have identified a basic working framework which will be employed to 
secure the removal, storage, and potential disposal of unauthorised adverts, 
should voluntary action not be secured.  There are a number of legal and 
other procedural issues to be established at this early stage.

Page 191

Agenda Item 9



The purpose of my report is to make Members aware of this initiative, and to 
seek your continued support.  The main purpose is to ensure that the 
Borough’s roads do not remain cluttered with unauthorised adverts which 
create a poor initial image for visitors, as well as a potential highway safety 
issue for road users. 

(i) Legal Implications

In cases where the County cannot enforce the Highway Act, the Borough 
Council may seek to prosecute offenders.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

There may be some initial financial implications in terms of the costs of 
removal which would be recoverable from the signage owners.  The Council 
would also seek to recover its costs in any subsequent prosecutions.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 192

Agenda Item 9



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 16th April, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Development Services 
Manager (Policy 
Regeneration & 
Information)

(D)

Title: Receipt of Local Plan Inspector’s Report

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council submitted the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 in February 
2018 and the hearing sessions were held in June 2018.  Following the 
hearings, the Council consulted on a number of main modifications, which 
were proposed in order to make the Plan ‘sound’.

Recommendations: 

To note the report.

Report

In February 2018 the Council submitted the Barrow Borough Local Plan to the 
Planning Inspectorate for Examination.  The Examination Hearing Sessions 
took place in June 2018 where the soundness and legal compliance of the 
Plan were considered.

Following the completion of the Examination Hearing Sessions, a series of 
Main Modifications to the Local Plan were published for consultation. The 
Inspector considered that the changes were necessary in order for the Local 
Plan to be found ‘sound’.  The Main Modifications were subjected to a six 
week consultation during September/October 2018. 

During the consultation the Council received 16 representations from 16 
representors. Six were in support of the Main Modifications, five stated they 
have no further comments, two were objections to the removal of the two 
housing allocations and three related to further amendments to the Main 
Modifications.  These representations were then sent to the Planning 
Inspector for consideration.

The Council received the final report from the Planning Inspector on the 20th 
March and the Local Plan will be amended in line with the main modifications 

Page 193

Agenda Item 10



and taken to Full Council for adoption on the 4th June 2019.  Overall the 
Inspector concluded that the new Plan provides an appropriate basis for the 
planning of the Borough, provided that the main modifications proposed by 
the Council, and contained within the Appendix to the Report, are made to it. 
The Inspector’s Report also confirms that the new Plan met all the legal 
requirements including public consultation requirements and the Duty to Co-
operate.

In the interim period prior to adoption, decision makers need to take into 
account the policies in the new Local Plan when determining planning 
applications.  Although there is not a precise methodology for attributing 
weight to emerging policies, the policies of the Submission Draft amended in 
accordance with the main modifications will form the adopted version of the 
Local Plan and should accordingly be given substantial weight until adoption, 
when they will have full weight.

Next Steps

The Council is now in a position to adopt the Barrow Borough Local Plan.  
The Local Plan will be amended in line with the main modifications and will 
then be taken to Full Council on the 4th June 2019 for formal adoption.

All consultees will then be informed of the adoption of the Local Plan and it 
will be published on the Council website and at deposit locations.

Following adoption, the new Local Plan’s policies will be monitored annually. 
The Government also advise that a review of any Local Plan is required in 
whole or in part at least every five years.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

Page 194

Agenda Item 10



(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 195

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	8 Planning Applications (Book 1)
	2019/0149 Town Hall 
	Consultation Responses
	Officer Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans 

	2019/0069 North Scale 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendations
	Plans 

	2019/0009 79 Romney Park 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans 

	2018/0817 Hayeswater Drive
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans

	2019/0150 Salthouse Mills 
	Consultation responses
	Officer Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans

	2019/0011 Low Peasholme Farm 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report
	Recommendation
	Plans 

	2019/0034 New Road Askam
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans 

	2019/0012 County Coach
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans 

	Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies 
	Index

	9 Unauthorised Advertisements within the Borough
	10 Receipt of Local Plan Inspector's Report

